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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The information presented in this Annual Reporfonm 10-K contains forward-looking statements wittiie
meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchancteof1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). THessard-
looking statements have been made pursuant tartivésjpns of the Private Securities Litigation RafioAct of
1995. These statements are not historical factsafluer are based on our current expectationsya&sts and
projections, and our beliefs and assumptions. Wanahwords such as “anticipate,” “expect,” “interghlan,”
“believe,” “seek,” “estimate,” “will” and similargressions to identify forward-looking statemefiisese
statements are not guarantees of future performamt@re subject to certain risks, uncertaintiesather factors,
some of which are beyond our control and are diffito predict. These factors could cause actuallte to differ
materially from those expressed or forecastederfahward-looking statements. These risks and taicdies are
described in the risk factors and elsewhere inAhisual Report on Form 10-K. We caution you noplace undue
reliance on these forward-looking statements, whiglect our management’s view only as of the d¥ditinis
Annual Report on Form 10-K. We are not obligatedpdate these statements or publicly release that @ any
revisions to them to reflect events or circumstaraféer the date of this Annual Report on Form 16rKo reflect
the occurrence of unanticipated events.

As used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, excepére otherwise stated or indicated by the context,
“Hawkins,” “we,” “us,” “the Company,” “our,” or “tle Registrant” means Hawkins, Inc. References gréfi2012”
means our fiscal year ending April 1, 2012, “fise@lL1” means our fiscal year ended April 3, 20%iscal 2010”
means our fiscal year ended March 28, 2010, aisdafi2009” means our fiscal year ended March 29920
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Hawkins, Inc. distributes bulk chemicals and blemdanufactures and distributes specialty chemfcaleur
customers in a wide variety of industries. We beganoperations primarily as a distributor of bakemicals with
strong customer focus. Over the years, we havetaiaéd the strong customer focus and have expamated
business by increasing our sales of value-addesafyechemical products, including repackagingnuling and
manufacturing certain products. In recent yearssigrificantly expanded the sales of our highergimablended
and manufactured products. We expect the spedhéignical portion of our business to continue toagrd/e
believe that we create value for our customersutjincsuperb service and support, quality produeisgnalized
applications and our trustworthy, creative empleyee

We currently conduct our business in two segménthistrial and Water Treatment. Financial inforroati
regarding these segments is reported in our Finh8tatements and Notes to Financial Statemenéslt&mas 7 and
8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Industrial Segment.Our Industrial Group operates this segment ofbmsiness, which specializes in providing
industrial chemicals, products and services pritpéoithe agriculture, energy, electronics, fodgemical
processing, pulp and paper, pharmaceutical, med@ate and plating industries. The grauptincipal products a
acids, alkalis and industrial and food-grade salts.

The Industrial Group:

* Receives, stores and distributes various cte&min bulk, including liquid caustic soda, suituacid,
hydrochloric acid, phosphoric acid, potassium hyife and agua ammoni

« Manufactures sodium hypochlorite (bleach)jadtural products and certain food-grade produaiduding
our patented Chee-Phos® liquid phosphate, lactates and other blended ptsgd

« Repackages water treatment chemicals for our Waitatment Group and bulk industrial chemicals tbige
smaller quantities to our custome

« Performs custom blending of certain chemicals tmt@emers according to customer formulas;
« Performs contract and private label packaging éardehold chemical:

The group’s sales are concentrated primarily indik, lowa, Minnesota, Missouri, North Dakota, Sou
Dakota, Tennessee, and Wisconsin while the grdepd-grade products are sold nationally. The IndgaisGroup
relies on a specially trained sales staff that walikectly with customers on their specific neédse group conduc
its business primarily through distribution centensl terminal operations.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011, we completieel acquisition of substantially all of the ass#Et¥ertex
Chemical Corporation (“Vertex”), a manufacturersoflium hypochlorite in the central Midwest. In ditudi to the
manufacture of sodium hypochlorite bleaches, Vedisiibutes and provides terminal services fokbigjuid
inorganic chemicals, and contract and private lpbekaging for household chemicals. Its corporagdijuarters a
located in St. Louis, Missouri, with manufacturisites in Dupo, lllinois, Camanche, lowa, and Mersphi
Tennessee. In connection with the acquisition we fhee sellers $27.2 million and assumed certaibilities of
Vertex. Vertex's business is part of our Indust@Gabup.

In fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2010, we invested in tvew facilities, which expanded the group’s abitiyservice
its customers. Our facility in Centralia, lllinoiwhich primarily serves our food-grade productsilbess, became
operational in July 2009. We also opened a fadititiinneapolis, Minnesota, to handle bulk chenscld to
pharmaceutical manufacturers. The total capitakegfiures on these two facilities were approxinyatel
$10.0 million through fiscal 2010.
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Water Treatment SegmenOur Water Treatment Group operates this segnfemirdbusiness, which
specializes in providing chemicals, equipment asidt®ns for potable water, municipal and indudtwastewater,
industrial process water and ngesidential swimming pool water. The group hasréssurces and flexibility to tre
systems ranging in size from a small single wel toulti-million-gallon-per-day treatment facility.

The group utilizes delivery routes operated byemployees who serve as route driver, salespersbhighly
trained technician to deliver our products and désg our customers’ water treatment needs. Wevedliimt the
high level of service provided by these individualews us to serve as the trusted water treatevquetrt for many
of the municipalities and other customers that eme We also believe that we are able to obta@ionapetitive cost
position on many of the chemicals sold by the Wateatment Group due to the volumes of these chamic
purchased by our Industrial Group.

The group operates out of warehouses in 18 citipplging products and services to customers in Aska,
lllinois, Indiana, lowa, Kansas, Michigan, MinnesoMissouri, Montana, Nebraska, North Dakota, O@iah,
South Dakota, Tennessee, Wisconsin and Wyomingopgeed two of these warehouses in fiscal 2011 jrofiscal
2010 and expect to continue to invest in existind mew branches to expand the group’s geographierage. Our
Water Treatment Group has historically experierfugtier sales during April to September, primariliedo a
seasonal increase in chemicals used by municip@rireatment facilities.

Discontinued Operations.In February 2009, we entered into two agreemehtseby we agreed to sell our
inventory and enter into a marketing relationsleigarding the business of our Pharmaceutical segméith
provided pharmaceutical chemicals to retail phaiesaand small-scale pharmaceutical manufacturéws. T
transaction closed in May 2009 and we have no fsiginit obligations to fulfill under the agreemernitbe results of
the Pharmaceutical segment have been reported@mtinued operations in our consolidated finarstialements
for all periods presented in this Annual Reporfamnm 10-K.

Raw Materials. We have numerous suppliers, including many oftlagor chemical producers in the United
States. We typically have written distributorshgzgeements or supply contracts with our supplieas dine
periodically renewed. We believe that most of thedpicts we purchase can be obtained from altematiarces
should existing relationships be terminated. Wedaggendent upon the availability of our raw matsriln the ever
that certain raw materials become generally unalsli| suppliers may extend lead times or limituiraff the
supply of materials to us. As a result, we mayhb®able to supply or manufacture products for astamers. Whil
we believe we have adequate sources of supplyuiorasv material and product requirements, we cahadature thi
supplies will be consistently available in the fetshould shortages occur.

Intellectual Property. Our intellectual property portfolio is of econamimportance to our business. When
appropriate, we have pursued, and we will contioysursue, patents covering our products. We ase lobtained
certain trademarks for our products to distingtisdm from our competitors’ products. The patentdior Chees-
Phos® liquid phosphate product, which is manufactureaby Industrial group, is scheduled to expire in Biober
2013. We regard much of the formulae, informatind processes that we generate and use in the doofduar
business as proprietary and protectable undercgtydi copyright, patent, trademark, trade secreétafair
competition laws.

Customer Concentration.No single customer represents more than 10%tledéredur total sales or the total
sales of any of our segments, but the loss of igarlfirgest customers could have a material adwadfset on our
results of operations. Total aggregate sales tdivaitargest customers were $46.0 million in fis2@09,
$47.1 million in fiscal 2010 and $53.1 million iisd¢al 2011.

Competition. We operate in a competitive industry and compétie many producers, distributors and sales
agents offering chemicals equivalent to substdnptél of the products we handle. Many of our coritpes are
larger than we are and may have greater finanesaurces, although no one competitor is dominaatiirindustry.
We compete by offering quality products at compegiprices coupled with outstanding customer sernvBecause
of our long-standing relationships with many of suppliers, we are often able to leverage thosgioelships to
obtain products when supplies are scarce or tdrobtanpetitive pricing.

Geographic Information. Substantially all of our revenues are generatedrid longived assets are located
the United States.

Employees. We had 321 employees as of April 3, 2011, ineclgdi8 covered by a collective bargaining
agreement.
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About Us. Hawkins, Inc. was founded in 1938 and incorpatateMinnesota in 1955. We became a publicly-
traded company in 1972. Our principal executivécef are located at 3100 East Hennepin Avenue, &éipolis,
Minnesota.

Available Information. We have made available, free of charge, throughrdernet website
(http://www.hawkinsinc.com) our Annual Reports aorid 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Curreap&ts
on Form 8-K, and, if applicable, amendments togheports, as soon as reasonably practicablevedter
electronically file these materials with, or furlmithem to, the Securities and Exchange Commis&eports of
beneficial ownership filed by our directors and @xese officers pursuant to Section 16(a) of theliange Act are
also available on our website. We are not includiveginformation contained on our website as pamro
incorporating it by reference into, this Annual Repon Form 10-K.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should consider carefully the following risksaw reading the information, including the finaricia
information, contained in this Annual Report on Foi0-K.

Fluctuations in the prices and availability of comadlity chemicals, which are cyclical in nature, calhave a
material adverse effect on our operations and thangins of our products.

Periodically, we experience significant and ragpigttfuations in the commodity pricing of raw matésiarhe
cyclicality of commodity chemical markets, suchcasistic soda, primarily results from changes inkilance
between supply and demand and the level of geepecalomic activity. We cannot predict whether thekess for
our commodity chemicals will favorably impact oyrevations or whether we will experience a negdtiyeact due
to oversupply and lower prices.

Our principal raw materials are generally purchasgder supply contracts. The prices we pay undeseth
contracts generally lag the market prices of théeulying raw material. The pricing within our supmlontracts
generally adjusts quarterly or monthly. In addititive cost of inventory we have on hand generailyiag the
current market pricing of such inventory. While ateempt to maintain competitive pricing and stahkrgin
dollars, the variability in our cost of inventompi the current market pricing can cause significatatility in our
margins realized. In periods of rapidly increasingrket prices, the inventory cost position willdeo be favorable
to us, possibly by material amounts, which may tpasy impact our margins. Conversely, in periodsapidly
decreasing market prices, the inventory cost msitiill tend to be unfavorable to us, possibly bgtemial amounts,
which may negatively impact our margins. We doerajage in futures or other derivatives contractsetige
against fluctuations in future prices. We may ety sales contracts where the selling price®torproducts are
fixed for a period of time, exposing us to volayilin raw materials prices that we acquire on & sparket or short-
term contractual basis. We attempt to pass commediting changes to our customers, but we maynadble to or
be delayed in doing so. Our inability to pass tigtoprice increases or any limitation or delay im passing through
price increases could adversely affect our proéitgms.

We are also dependent upon the availability ofraur materials. In the event that raw materialsimshort
supply or unavailable, raw material suppliers metged lead times or limit or cut off supplies. Asesult, we may
not be able to supply or manufacture productsdaresor all of our customers. For example, in cadead08 a
miners’ strike in Canada significantly limited slipp of potassium chloride, a key component of sofnaur
products. Due to the resulting shortage, many ct&nesbmpanies were unable to supply their custonvérsle we
were able to obtain a supply of the product sudfitito meet our customers’ needs, we cannot baicehat such
supplies would be available in the future shoultkosimilar shortages occur. Constraints on thelyupr delivery
of critical raw materials could disrupt our opesat and adversely affect the performance of ouinbas.
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We operate in a highly competitive environment afaete significant competition and price pressul

We operate in a highly competitive industry and pete with producers, manufacturers, distributoid sales
agents offering chemicals equivalent to substdntél of the products we handle. Competition isdx
on several key criteria, including product pricegguct performance and quality, product availap#ihd security of
supply, responsiveness of product developmentapeation with customers, and customer service yMdirour
competitors are larger than we are and may haaegrénancial resources. As a result, these coitopemay be
better able than us to withstand changes in camditivithin our industry, changes in the prices availability of
raw materials, and changes in general economicittomsl Additionally, competitors’ pricing decisisrcould
compel us to decrease our prices, which could adWeaffect our margins and profitability. Our dtyito maintain
or increase our profitability is dependent upon akitity to offset competitive decreases in the@siand margins of
our products by improving production efficiency aralume, identifying higher margin chemical prodiahd
improving existing products through innovation aedearch and development. If we are unable to miaiour
profitability or competitive position, we could ksnarket share to our competitors and experierdiecesl
profitability.

Demand for our products is affected by general eoaric conditions and by the cyclical nature of manythe
industries we serve, which could cause significdloictuations in our sales volumes and results.

Demand for our products is affected by general esoa conditions. A decline in general economic vsihess
conditions in the industries served by our cust@weuld have a material adverse effect on our lasinrAlthough
our sales volumes have increased in areas tradlitjoconsidered non-cyclical such as water treatraed food
products, many of our customers are in businesstsate cyclical in nature, such as the industniahufacturing,
surface finishing and energy industries which idelthe automobile parts markets and the ethanabing
Downturns in these industries could adversely afiec sales and our financial results by affectiegnand for and
pricing of our products.

Our business is subject to hazards common to chetniwisinesses, any of which could interrupt our ghaction
and adversely affect our results of operations.

Our business is subject to hazards common to claémianufacturing, storage, handling and transportat
including explosions, fires, severe weather, natlisasters, mechanical failure, unscheduled donati
transportation interruptions, chemical spills, Hexges or releases of toxic or hazardous substangsses and
other risks. These hazards could cause personay iapd loss of life, severe damage to or destnaf property
and equipment, and environmental contaminatioadutition, the occurrence of material operating f@ols at our
facilities due to any of these hazards may dimioighability to meet our output goals and resuki inegative public
or political reaction. Many of our facilities aretdered by significant residential populations vbhiacrease the risk
of negative public or political reaction shouldemvironmental issue occur and could lead to advayeang actions
that could limit our ability to operate our busisés those locations. Accordingly, these hazardbkthair
consequences could have a material adverse effemtrooperations as a whole, including our rexflisperations
and cash flows, both during and after the periodpefrational difficulties.

Environmental, health and safety laws and regulati® cause us to incur substantial costs and may sebjs to
future liabilities.

In the jurisdictions in which we operate, we arbjsat to numerous federal, state and local enviemtai,
health and safety laws and regulations, includimagé governing the discharge of pollutants intcsih@and water,
and the management and disposal of hazardous sabstand wastes. The nature of our business expsdesisks
of liability under these laws and regulations du¢he production, storage, use, transportationsaitel of materials
that can cause contamination or personal injurgldased into the environment. Ongoing complianitie such laws
and regulations is an important consideration foand we invest substantial capital and incur Sigant operating
costs in our compliance efforts. Governmental regioh has become increasingly strict in recentg.éate expect
this trend to continue and anticipate that comgkawill continue to require increased capital exfieemes and
operating costs.
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If we violate environmental, health and safety lawsegulations, in addition to being required dorect such
violations, we could be held liable in administvaticivil or criminal proceedings for substantialefls and other
sanctions that could disrupt or limit our operasiohiabilities associated with the investigatioran
cleanup of hazardous substances, as well as péispmg, property damages or natural resource dgraarising
out of such hazardous substances, may be imposedrig situations without regard to violations ofi¢aor
regulations or other fault, and may also be impgsedly and severally (so that a responsible pargy be held
liable for more than its share of the losses ingdlvor even the entire loss). Such liabilities barifficult to
identify and the extent of any such liabilities d¢endifficult to predict. We use, and in the pastdrused, hazardous
substances at many of our facilities, and have rgée@, and continue to generate, hazardous wasaesuenber of
our facilities. We have in the past, and may inftttare, be subject to claims relating to expogdarkazardous
materials and the associated liabilities may beeredt

Changes in our customers’ products or failure of pproducts to meet customers’ quality specificatfooould
adversely affect our sales and profitability.

Our chemicals are used for a broad range of apjaitaby our customers. Changes in our customeoslycts
or processes may enable our customers to redwaronate consumption of the chemicals that we glev
Customers may also find alternative materials ocesses that no longer require our products. Comlsgly, it is
important that we develop new products to replaeestles of products that mature and decline in use

Our products provide important performance attesub our customers’ products. If our productsttail
perform in @ manner consistent with quality speaifions or have a shorter useful life than guaehta customer
could seek replacement of the product or damagesofis incurred as a result of the product faitmgerform as
expected. A successful claim or series of clainares us could have a material adverse effect ofiancial
condition and results of operations and could téawd loss of one or more customers.

Our business, particularly our Water Treatment Grpuis subject to seasonality and weather conditiongich
could adversely affect our results of operations.

Our Water Treatment Group has historically expaemehhigher sales during April to September, primathie
to a seasonal increase in chemicals used by mahiggter treatment facilities. Demand is also @ffddy weather
conditions, as either higher or lower than normatipitation or temperatures may affect water usagethe
consumption of our products. We cannot assure lyauseasonality or fluctuating weather conditiofitwot have ¢
material adverse affect on our results of operatamd financial condition.

Costs related to a multi-employer pension plan, athhas liabilities in excess of plan assets, mayéa
material adverse effect on our financial conditicand results of operations.

We participate in the Central States SoutheasSauthwest Areas Pension Funds (“CSS” or “the plaam”)
multi-employer pension plan, for certain unionizzdployees. Our contributions to the plan may eseafafuture
years should we withdraw from the plan or upondbeurrence of factors outside our control, inclgdine
bankruptcy or insolvency of other participating doyers, actions taken by trustees who manage trg pl
government regulations, or a funding deficiencyhi@ plan.

CSS adopted a rehabilitation plan as a resulsddtuarial certification for the plan year begmgnidanuary 1,
2008 which placed the plan in critical status. Pple’s 2010 Annual Funding Notice stated that a3asfuary 1,
2010 the Central States Pension Fund remainedticatistatus with a funded percentage of 63.4%e plan
adopted an updated rehabilitation plan effectiveddeber 31, 2010 which implements additional meastare
improve the plan’s funded level, including estatilig an increased minimum retirement age and aetlyar
adjusting certain pre-age 65 benefits for participavho retire after July 1, 2011. Despite thessngles, we can
make no assurances of the extent to which the egdahabilitation plan will improve the funded st&bf the plan.

While the underfunding of the plan is not our direbligation or liability, we are responsible fasrgportion of
the underfunded liability in certain circumstandest instance, if we were to cease making contigistto the plan
or if our union employees discontinued participadtio the union, we could trigger a substantial aittwal liability.
We are currently unable to reasonably estimatesaok potential contingent liability. Any withdrawlability will
be recorded when it is probable that a liabilitises<xand can be reasonably estimated.
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The insurance that we maintain may not fully covall potential exposures

We maintain property, business interruption andiakyg insurance, but such insurance may not cavesks
associated with the hazards of our business asubigct to limitations, including deductibles amdits on the
liabilities covered. We may incur losses beyondlitings or outside the coverage of our insuranckcjs, including
liabilities for environmental remediation. In addit, from time to time, various types of insuraf@ecompanies in
the specialty chemical industry have not been alsl#lon commercially acceptable terms or, in soases, have not
been available at all. In the future, we may noable to obtain coverage at current levels, andoemiums may
increase significantly on coverage that we maintain

If we are unable to retain key personnel or attrawe¢w skilled personnel, it could have an adverseaut on our
business.

Because of the specialized and technical natuceiobusiness, our future performance is dependetti®
continued service of, and on our ability to attraet retain, qualified management, scientific, técdl and support
personnel. The unanticipated departure of key mesniifeour management team could have an adversacinop
our business.

We may not be able to successfully consummate feitacquisitions or integrate acquisitions into ouubiness,
which could result in unanticipated expenses andses.

As part of our business growth strategy, we haggiiaed businesses and may pursue acquisition®ifuthre.
Our ability to pursue this strategy will be limitbg our ability to identify appropriate acquisiticandidates and our
financial resources, including available cash amddwing capacity. The expense incurred in consutimga
acquisitions, the time it takes to integrate arusition or our failure to integrate businessescsssfully could resu
in unanticipated expenses and losses. Furthermerejay not be able to realize the anticipated hisnfedm
acquisitions.

The process of integrating acquired operationsadntoexisting operations may result in unforesegeerating
difficulties and may require significant financralsources that would otherwise be available foottgoing
development or expansion of existing operationg fi$ks associated with the integration of acqois# include
potential disruption of our ongoing business arsdrdction of management, unforeseen claims, ligdsli
adjustments, charges and write-offs, difficultycomforming the acquired business’ standards, psesgprocedures
and controls with our operations, and challengesngy from the increased scope, geographic diweesitl
complexity of the expanded operations.

Our business is subject to risks stemming from naiudisasters or other extraordinary events outsiaeour
control, which could interrupt our production anda@versely affect our results of operations.

Natural disasters have the potential of interruptinr operations and damaging our properties, wtiehd
adversely affect our business. Since 1963, floodiritpe Mississippi River has required the Comparngtminal
operations to be temporarily shifted out of itsltmigs seven times, including three times sincesfiréng of 2010.
No assurance can be given that flooding or otherrabdisasters will not recur or that there wiitlbe materia
damage or interruption to our operations in thareifrom such disasters.

Chemical-related assets may be at greater risitofd terrorist attacks than other possible tarigetise United
States. Federal law imposes new site security rexpgints, specifically on chemical facilities, whigguire
increased capital spending and increase our overgaenses. New federal regulations have alreagely &dopted
to increase the security of the transportationazidndous chemicals in the United States. We shipetceive
materials that are classified as hazardous andelieve we have met these requirements, but additfederal and
local regulations that limit the distribution ofzadous materials are being considered. Bans oement of
hazardous materials through certain cities coulctestly affect the efficiency of our logistical epgons. Broader
restrictions on hazardous material movements deald to additional investment and could change @/had what
products we provide.
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The occurrence of extraordinary events, includirgrie terrorist attacks and the outbreak or esoalaff
hostilities, cannot be predicted, but their occaceecan be expected to negatively affect the ecgrinmgeneral, an
specifically the markets for our products. The Hasg damage from a direct attack on our assetassets used by
us, could include loss of life and property damdgeddition, available insurance coverage maybeosufficient to
cover all of the damage incurred or, if availaloiay be prohibitively expensive.

We may not be able to renew our leases of land vetfeur of our operations facilities reside.

We lease the land where our three main terminalsoaated and where a significant manufacturingtgka
located. We do not have guaranteed lease renewahs@nd may not be able to renew our leaseseifutiure. Our
current lease renewal periods extend out to 2044 (@ase), 2018 (two leases) and 2029 (one IeHse)ailure to
secure extended lease terms on any one of theBdaenay have a material adverse impact on asirtess, as
they are where a significant portion of our chensieae manufactured and where the majority of alk bhemicals
are stored. While we can make no assurances, badadtorical experience and anticipated futuredsewe believ
that we will be able to renew our leases as thewahperiods expire.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We own our principal location, which consists opemaximately 11 acres of land in Minneapolis, Minois
with six buildings containing a total of 177,00Quace feet of office and warehouse space primasgdiby our
Industrial Group. Our principal office is locateddne of these buildings, at 3100 East HennepimAgeWe have
installed sprinkler systems in substantially albaf warehouse facilities for fire protection. Warny customary
levels of insurance covering the replacement ofatged property.

In addition to the facilities described previousiyr other facilities are described below. We haithat these
facilities, together with those described above,atequate and suitable for the purposes they.dénkess noted,
each facility is owned by us and is primarily usedoffice and warehouse.

Approx.
Group Location Square Feet
Industrial St. Paul, MN(1] 32,00(
Minneapolis, MN(2) 20,00(
Centralia, IL(3) 77,00(
Camanche, IA(4 95,00(
St Louis, MO(4) 6,00(
Dupo, IL(4) 64,00(
Water Treatmer Fargo, ND 20,00(
Fond du Lac, W 24,00(
Washburn, NC 14,00(
Billings, MT 9,00(
Sioux Falls, SC 27,00(
Rapid City, SC 9,00(
Peotone, IL(5 18,00(
Superior, WI 17,00(
Slater, 1A 12,00(
Lincoln, NE(5) 16,00(
Eldridge, IA 6,00(
Columbia, MO(5) 14,00(
Garnett, KS 18,00(
Ft. Smith, AR(5) 17,00(
Muncie, IN(6) 12,00(
Centralia, IL(6) 39,00(
Industrial and Water Treatme St. Paul, MN(7’ 59,00(
Memphis, TN(4) 41,00(
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(1) Our terminal operations, located at two sites gposfie sides of the Mississippi River, are madefupree
buildings, outside storage tanks for the storad@jafd bulk chemicals, including caustic sodawes| as
numerous smaller tanks for storing and mixing cloafsi The land is leased from the Port Authorityhef City
of St. Paul, Minnesota. The applicable leases niih December 2013, at which time we have an optiorenew
the leases for an additional f-year period on the same terms and conditions sutgi@enegotiation of ren

(2) This facility is leased from a third party to seousr bulk pharmaceutical custome

(3) This facility includes 10 acres of land locatedCientralia, lllinois owned by the company. The fiagibecame
operational in July 2009 and primarily serves amad-grade products business. Prior to fiscal 20islfacility
was shared with the Water Treatment Grc

(4) The acquisition of Vertex in fiscal 2011 includedatfice building located in St Louis, Missouri and
manufacturing and warehouse facilities located anighis, Tennessee; Camanche, lowa; and Dupo,idliAdl
of the facilites and land are owned by the compaitly the exception of the land in Dupo, lllinoishigh is
leased from a third party. The lease runs througly,M014. The facility in Memphis is shared betwten
Industrial and Water Treatment Grou

(5) This facility is leased from a third par
(6) This facility was purchased in fiscal 20:

(7) Our Red Rock facility, which consists of a 59,060are-foot building located on approximately 10eganf
land, has outside storage capacity for liquid lml&micals, as well as numerous smaller tanks éoimgt and
mixing chemicals

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On November 3, 2009, ICL Performance Products,“LE®L(), a chemical supplier to us, filed a lawsuitthe
United States District Court for the Eastern Dedtaf Missouri, asserting breach of a contractlfier sale of
phosphoric acid in 2009 (the “2009 Contract”). I€teks to recover $7.3 million in damages and pigment
interest, and additionally seeks to recover itdxand attorneys’ fees. ICL also claimed that weabhed a contract
for the sale of phosphoric acid in 2008 (the “2@htract”). ICL has since dropped its claim fordme of the 2008
Contract. We have counterclaimed against ICL afigghat ICL falsely claimed to have a shortageasf materials
that prevented it from supplying us with the coatea quantity of phosphoric acid for 2008. We cldirat ICL usec
this alleged shortage and the threat of discontiraipments of phosphoric acid to force us to paygased prices
for the remainder of 2008, and to sign the 2009taoh Based on this alleged conduct, we have trofogir
alternate causes of action including: (1) breactooftract, (2) breach of the implied covenant addjéaith and fair
dealing, (3) negligent misrepresentation, andr{gritional misrepresentation. We seek to recoves $illlion in
damages, and additionally seek to recover punitareages, pre- and post-judgment interest, andasts and
attorneys’ fees. The discovery phase in this adia@omplete and this action is scheduled for jugf in late
October 2011. We are not able to predict the ulitnoaitcome of this litigation, but legal proceedirsgich as this
can result in substantial costs and divert our mament’s attention and resources, which may hawatarial
adverse effect on our business and results of tpesaincluding cash flows.

We are a party from time to time in other legalga®dings arising in the ordinary course of ourhess. To
date, none of the litigation has had a materiaatfbn us.

ITEM 4. [REMOVED AND RESERVED]
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE COMPANYS COMMON EQUITY, RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS,
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIE!

Quarterly Stock Data High Low
Fiscal 2011

4t Quarter $46.8¢  $36.0(

3 rdQuarter 50.1¢ 34.0:

2 ndQuarter 37.48  24.21

1stQuarter 29.5( 23.1¢
Fiscal 201(

4 th Quarter $23.9¢  $19.4(

3rdQuarter 24.4:  20.27

2ndQuarter 26.4¢  18.1¢

1stQuarter 22.91 14.7¢
Cash Dividend: Declared Paid
Fiscal 201Z

1stQuarter $0.3(
Fiscal 2011

4 th Quarter $0.3C

3rdQuarter $0.4(C

2 ndQuarter $0.4(

1 stQuarter $0.2¢
Fiscal 201(

4th Quarter $0.2¢

3 rdQuarter $0.3¢

2 ndQuarter $0.3¢

1 stQuarter $0.2¢

Our common shares are traded on The NASDAQ Glolzakst under the symbol “HWKN.” The price
information represents closing sale prices as teddyy The NASDAQ Global Market. As of April 3, 2D1shares
of our common stock were held by approximately S8&reholders of record.

We first started paying cash dividends in 1985 faane continued to do so since. In July 2010 anduatg009
in recognition of the Company’strong financial performance in fiscal 2010 af@%, its strong cash position anc
debt, the Board of Directors authorized a spediatidnd of $0.10 per share in addition to a regskmi-annual
cash dividend of $0.30 per share for July 2010%h&8 per share for July 2009. Future dividendlkewell be
dependent upon our consolidated results of op@rgtitnancial position, cash flows and other fagtand will be
evaluated by our Board of Directors.
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The following graph compares the cumulative totereholder return on our common shares with the
cumulative total returns of the NASDAQ Industriatiex, the NASDAQ Composite Index, the Russell 20@@&x
and the Standard & Poor’s (“S&P”") Small Cap 600exdor our last five completed fiscal years. Thagjr assumes
the investment of $100 in our stock, the NASDAQusidial Index, the NASDAQ Composite Index, the Riliss
2000 Index and the S&P Small Cap 600 Index on M&dc006, and reinvestment of all dividends. Weehadde(
the S&P Small Cap 600 Index because during fis@alL2Hawkins, Inc. was added to the S&P Small GiplGdex
based on disclosures by S&P.
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—— NASDAD Indusirial Index — & — NASDAQ Composite Index  =-<#--- Russell 2000 Index
e B &P Small Cap 600 Index Hawkins, Inc.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Selected financial data for the Company is preseimt¢he table below and should be read in conjanatith
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financ@hdition and Results of Operations included in If2and the
Company’s consolidated financial statements andsititereto included in Item 8 herein.

Fiscal Years
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(In thousands, except per share date

Sales from continuing operatio $297,64. $257,09¢ $284,35¢ $186,66: $151,76¢
Gross profit from continuing operatio 61,90: 64,44t 62,42( 38,52¢ 34,70¢
Income from continuing operatiol 20,31« 23,73¢ 23,424 8,48¢ 7,724
Basic earnings per common share from continuing

operations 1.9¢ 2.32 2.2¢€ 0.8: 0.7¢
Diluted earnings per common share from continuing

operations 1.9¢ 2.31 2.2¢ 0.8: 0.7¢
Cash dividends declared per common sl 0.7¢ 0.6¢€ 0.52Z 0.4¢ 0.44
Cash dividends paid per common st 0.6¢ 0.64 0.5C 0.4¢ 0.4z
Total asset $185,00! $160,29: $136,29( $108,94: $101,26¢
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS

The following is a discussion and analysis of aoaficial condition and results of operations for figscal year
ended April 3, 2011, March 28, 2010, and MarchZZ¥)9. This discussion should be read in conjunatiith the
Financial Statements and Notes to Financial Staté&sriacluded in Item 8 of this Annual Report oniRdt0-K.

Overview

We derive substantially all of our revenues from $lale of bulk and specialty chemicals to our g¢usts in a
wide variety of industries. We began our operatiprisarily as a distributor of bulk chemicals wétstrong
customer focus. Over the years we have maintatmedttong customer focus and have expanded ourdsssby
increasing our sales of value-added specialty cterproducts, including repackaging, blending arahufacturing
certain products. In recent years, we significaaiipanded the sales of our higmeargin blended and manufactu
products, including our foodrade products. We expect this specialty chemigglgn of our business to continue
grow.

We have continued to invest in growing our busin€ssJanuary 14, 2011, we completed the acquisition
substantially all of the assets of Vertex Chem{@atporation (“Vertex”), for approximately $27.2 foh. In
addition to the manufacture of sodium hypochlobiteaches, Vertex distributes and provides ternsealices for
bulk liquid inorganic chemicals, and contract andate label packaging for household chemicals.B#&lkeve the
acquisition strengthens our market position inNhéwest. Vertex had revenues of approximately $3@an in
calendar 2010. While Vertex’s margins have histilyjcbeen somewhat lower than ours, we expecttheat
acquisition will be accretive to earnings. Opermgtiasults of Vertex are included in our consolidatesults of
operations from the date of acquisition in this AahReport on Form 10-K as part of our Industrejraent. See
Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statement$uiither information

In fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2010, we invested in tveav facilities to expand our ability to service auistomers
and facilitate growth within our Industrial Groupur facility in Centralia, lllinois began operat®m July 2009 an
primarily serves our food-grade products businéss closed our Linden, New Jersey food-grade pradiudacility
in September 2009 and transferred these operatiams Centralia facility. Also in fiscal 2009, visiilt a facility in
Minneapolis, Minnesota to handle bulk chemicalsl dolpharmaceutical manufacturers. The total chpita
expenditures on these two facilities were approsétye10.0 million through fiscal 2010 of which apgimately
$7.5 million occurred during fiscal 2009 and appreately $2.5 million occurred in the first six mastof fiscal
2010.

We opened two new branches for our Water Treat@eotip in fiscal 2011 and one new branch in fis€dl®
and expect to continue to invest in existing and beanches to expand our Water Treatment Groupg@phic
coverage. The cost of these branch expansiond expected to be material. In addition, we haveaaiely added
route sales personnel to certain existing Wateaffment Group branch offices to spur growth withim existing
geographic coverage area.

In February 2009, we agreed to sell our inventoy entered into a marketing agreement regardinibaes
of our Pharmaceutical segment, which provided phasutical chemicals to retail pharmacies and satalle
pharmaceutical manufacturers. The transaction dlos&lay 2009 and we have no significant obligagiom fulfill
under the agreement. The results of the Pharmaat¢ggment have been reported as discontinuedtapes in ou
Consolidated Financial Statements for all periogs@nted in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Our financial performance in fiscal 2011 was highted by:

 Sales from continuing operations of $297.6 milliarl,5.8% increase from fiscal 20:

» Gross profit from continuing operations of $hillion or 20.8% of sales, a $2.5 million de@ean gross
profit dollars from fiscal 201C

» Net cash provided by operating activities of $28iion; and

¢ Cash and cash equivalents and investmentkableafor sale were $37.4 million as of the endisfal 2011
after expending $25.5 million related to the Verdexjuisition during fiscal 201.
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We seek to maintain relatively constant gross pdufilars on each of our products as the cost ofaw
materials increase or decrease. Since we expdatéhaill continue to experience fluctuations irr aw material
costs and resulting prices in the future, we beliat gross profit dollars is the best measu@uiofrofitability
from the sale of our products. If we maintain rielglly stable profit dollars on each of our productsr reported
gross profit percentage will decrease when theaodte product increases and will increase wherctist of the
product decreases. We use the last in, first dufQ”) method of valuing Hawkins’ inventory, whidauses the
most recent product costs to be recognized inrmmame statement. The valuation of LIFO inventonyifiberim
periods is based on our estimates of fiscal yearinventory levels and costs. The LIFO invent@aluation methor
and the resulting cost of sales are consistenteuithbusiness practices of pricing to current comiityachemical
raw material prices. Our LIFO reserve increase@@ million in fiscal 2011 due to rising costs drigher
inventory volumes on hand at year-end maintaineddet customer requirements during an anticipdtedif The
increased reserve decreased our reported grossfprahe year. Our LIFO reserve decreased by &idllion in
fiscal 2010 due to rapidly declining costs. Thism@ase in the reserve increased our reported gro8sin fiscal
2010. Vertex’s inventory cost, which representsrapimately 18% of the consolidated first-in, fitstt (“FIFO”)
inventory balance at April 3, 2011, is determinsthg the FIFO method.

Our raw material costs fluctuated dramatically dgriiscal 2009 and fiscal 2010. The costs of thgpnitg of
our primary raw materials began to increase ramdly substantially in the first quarter of fiscGD®2 due to high
demand and, in some cases, constrained supplyowmged to experience those cost trends througlthiind
quarter of fiscal 2009. The costs for these rawenias leveled off in the fourth quarter of fis@al09, before
declining significantly during fiscal 2010, witheltosts at the end of fiscal 2010 substantiallyelothian they were
in the at the end of fiscal 2009. Our raw matez@ldts have been generally increasing throughoealf2011,
although they have been significantly more stalldatin fiscal years 2009 and 2010. Current raw rizdteosts are
at levels significantly below the peak that occdrdeiring the third and fourth quarters of fiscaD20

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth certain items froor gtatement of income as a percentage of salesgasiod tc

period:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2011 2010 2009
Sales 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of sale: (79.29% (74.9% (78.0%
Gross profit 20.8% 25.1% 22.(%
Selling, general and administrative exper (10.1)% (10.0% (8.8%
Operating incom: 10.7% 15.1% 13.1%
Investment incom 0.1% 0.1% 0.1%
Income from continuing operations before incomes& 10.€% 15.2% 13.2%
Provision for income taxe (4.0% (6.1)% (5.0%
Income from continuing operatiol 6.8% 9.1% 8.2%
Income from discontinued operations, net of 0.C% 0.1% 0.2%
Net income 6.8% 9.2% 8.4%
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Fiscal 2011 Compared to Fiscal 201
Sales

Sales increased $40.5 million, or 15.8%, to $297il6on for fiscal 2011, as compared to sales of
$257.1 million for fiscal 2010. The sales increases primarily driven by higher sales of manufaciuaed specialt
chemical products and somewhat higher selling prioebulk chemicals due to increasing commoditgrottal
costs. Sales of these bulk products were approrignad% of sales compared to approximately 19%énprevious
year. Additionally, the acquisition of Vertex, whiclosed in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011, cittted
$9.2 million in revenue.

Industrial Segment.Industrial segment sales increased $33.8 milbori,9.3%, to $208.7 million for fiscal
2011. The sales increase was primarily attributeblggher sales of manufactured and specialty atemroducts
and somewhat higher selling prices for commoditik lshemicals due to increased commodity chemicaicdn
addition, Vertex revenues of $9.2 million are irdgd in fiscal 2011 Industrial segment sales.

Water Treatment SegmentWater Treatment segment sales increased $6.ibmitr 8.2%, to $88.9 million fi
fiscal 2011. The sales increase was primarilylaiteble to increased sales of manufactured andadfyechemical
products.

Gross Profit

Gross profit was $61.9 million, or 20.8% of salfes,fiscal 2011, as compared to $64.4 million, 6r1®6 of
sales, for fiscal 2010. The LIFO method of valuimgentory negatively impacted gross profit by $#lion for
fiscal 2011 due to increased raw material costshagiter volumes of inventory at year end maintaiteetheet
customer requirements during an anticipated fldodhe prior year, LIFO positively impacted grossfit by
$12.6 million due to decreases in certain raw niteosts during that period.

Industrial Segment.Gross profit for the Industrial segment was $36ilion, or 17.7% of sales, for fiscal
2011, as compared to $37.3 million, or 21.3% oésafor fiscal 2010. Competitive pricing pressuaed increased
operational overhead costs contributed to the laywess profit levels in the Industrial segment.sTdpioup incurred
$0.3 million of overhead costs associated withdleontrol efforts in the fourth quarter of fisc&l12. These
reductions in gross profit were partially offsetligher sales of higher margin manufactured andiajtg chemical
products. The LIFO method of valuing inventory niagdy impacted gross profit in this segment by3&illion in
fiscal 2011, as compared to positively impactingsgrprofit by $10.2 million in fiscal 2010.

Water Treatment SegmenGross profit for the Water Treatment segment $2&0 million, or 28.1% of sales,
for fiscal 2011, as compared to $27.2 million, 84 of sales, for fiscal 2010. The decrease isgpofit dollars
was primarily due to competitive pricing pressuwaiad increased operational overhead costs, partifgt by
increased sales. Additionally, the LIFO method alfnng inventory negatively impacted gross prafithis segment
by $1.1 million in fiscal 2011, as compared to pi@sly impacting gross profit by $2.4 million insttal 2010.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”) expessncreased $4.3 million to $29.9 million, or 2. bf
sales, for fiscal 2011, as compared to $25.6 millar 10.0% of sales, for fiscal 2010. We incurapgroximately
$1.0 million in additional expense as a resulthef death of John Hawkins, our former Chief Exeai®fficer,
through the accelerated vesting of his previousinted performance-based restricted stock unitstouk options,
as well as his retention bonus agreement. Othasitdriving the increased expenses include acquisibsts of
approximately $0.7 million relating to the Vertesgaisition in addition to higher equity incentiviap costs and
litigation defense costs.
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Operating Income

Operating income was $32.0 million, or 10.7% o&safor fiscal 2011, as compared to $38.8 millamn15.1%
of sales, for fiscal 2010. The decrease in opagatinome was the result of reduced gross profitsiacreased
SG&A expenses. Both reporting segments saw a deitlitheir gross profit dollars due to competitprécing
pressures and higher operational overhead costis.98gments were also negatively impacted by tk©Lthethod
of valuing inventory in fiscal 2011.

Investment Income

Investment income was $0.3 million for fiscal 2CHrd fiscal 2010.

Provision for Income Taxes

Our effective income tax rate was 37.1% for fi2@l1 compared to 39.3% for fiscal 2010. The lowtrative
tax rate for fiscal 2011 was primarily due to irased permanent tax differences, lower taxable ieciewvels and
somewhat lower effective state tax rates.

Fiscal 2010 Compared to Fiscal 2009
Sales

Sales decreased $27.3 million, or 9.6%, to $257liomfor fiscal 2010, as compared to sales of428million
for fiscal 2009. The sales decrease was primarilsed by lower selling prices for commodity bulkeshicals,
including caustic soda, due to lower commodity cieahrcosts in fiscal 2010 as compared to the préar. Sales of
these products were approximately 19% of sales aoeapto approximately 29% in the previous year. dédine ir
bulk chemical sales was patrtially offset by higbales of our manufactured and specialty chemicadymts.

Industrial Segment.Industrial segment sales decreased $26.7 miltiof3.2%, to $174.9 million for fiscal
2010. The sales decrease was primarily attributabl@wver selling prices for commaodity bulk chenlgdue to
lower commodity chemical costs in fiscal 2010 conepato the prior year. This was partially offsettbhgher sales
of manufactured and specialty chemical products.

Water Treatment SegmentWater Treatment segment sales decreased $0i6rmik 0.7%, to $82.2 million
for fiscal 2010. Increased sales of manufacturebspecialty chemical products were offset by desaedn selling
prices for commodity chemicals due to lower comrtyodhemical costs in fiscal 2010 compared to therprear.

Gross Profit

Gross profit was $64.4 million, or 25.1% of safes,fiscal 2010, as compared to $62.4 million, @ar@®% of
sales, for fiscal 2009. The LIFO method of valuimgentory increased gross profit by $12.6 milliam fiscal 2010
due to decreases in certain raw material costsremkd IFO decreased gross profit by $10.0 milliothie prior yea
due to increases in certain raw material costandutiat period. The increase in gross profit asragntage of sales
was primarily driven by our ability to maintain atively stable margin dollars on lower selling psacompared to
the prior year, in addition to an increase in saldsigher margin manufactured and specialty chahpooducts and
the LIFO reserve adjustments.

Industrial Segment.Gross profit for the Industrial segment was $31illion, or 21.3% of sales, for fiscal
2010, as compared to $41.5 million, or 20.6% oésafor fiscal 2009. In fiscal 2009, the gross pidllars were
significantly higher than historical levels duetihe sale of lowecost inventory on hand during that period of rag
escalating commodity chemical prices as well amarease in profits realized on certain productemetwe had
inventory available to meet escalated demand dwipgriod of constrained supply. By contrast, sedi 2010,
market conditions returned to levels more in lirithwur historical experience and, as a result,gvass profit
dollars were lower for that period. Increased ofi@enal overhead costs, primarily related to the tvew facilities,
also contributed to the lower gross profit levelshie Industrial segment. The reductions were grtdffset by
higher profits realized from the sale of manufaetuand specialty chemical products. The increagedss profit
margin as a percent of sales was primarily driveour ability to maintain relatively stable marglollars on lower
selling prices compared to the prior year. The LHa€thod of valuing inventory positively impacteags profit in
this segment by $10.2 million in fiscal 2010, ampared to negatively impacting gross profit by $&iflion in
fiscal 2009.
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Water Treatment Segmentross profit for the Water Treatment segment $2&2 million, or 33.0% of sales,
for fiscal 2010, as compared to $21.0 million, 6r3% of sales, for fiscal 2009. The higher grosdipdollars were
primarily driven by a favorable product mix charagesales of higher-margin manufactured and spgdh#mical
products increased, and we experienced favoratd¢heeconditions in the first quarter of fiscal RQds compare to
the first quarter of fiscal 2009. The increasetiosg profit margin as a percent of sales was piiyndriven by our
ability to maintain relatively stable margin doBawn lower selling prices compared to the prioryAdditionally,
the LIFO method of valuing inventory positively iagied gross profit in this segment by $2.4 millioriiscal 2010
as compared to negatively impacting gross profieByL million in fiscal 2009.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

SG&A expenses were $25.6 million, or 10.0% of sdiesfiscal 2010, as compared to $25.1 million88% o
sales, for fiscal 2009. The increase in SG&A expsivgas primarily the result of higher equity incemplan,
variable pay plan and medical insurance costsgtigrtffset by lower bad debt expense. The increasse
percentage of sales was primarily the result ofinerease in sales from fiscal 2009.

Operating Income

Operating income was $38.8 million, or 15.1% ogsafor fiscal 2010, as compared to $37.3 millmm13.1%
of sales, for fiscal 2009. A $6.1 million increaseoperating income for the Water Treatment segmehich was
driven by higher sales volumes for manufacturedspetialty chemical products, was partially ofisgta
$4.6 million decrease in operating income for theulstrial segment. Both segments benefited froni.th©®
method of valuing inventory in fiscal 2010.

Investment Income

Investment income was $0.3 million for fiscal 2G fiscal 2009. Investment income remained flat
yearover-year primarily due to lower yields on investms as compared to the prior year.

Provision for Income Taxes

Our effective income tax rate was 39.3% for fist@1 0 compared to 37.8% for fiscal 2009. The higifactive
tax rate for fiscal 2010 was primarily due to desed permanent tax differences that served to ecitheceffective
tax rate in fiscal 2009.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash provided by operations in fiscal 2011 was%28llion compared to $38.8 million in fiscal 2046d
$24.4 million in fiscal 2009. The decrease in cpsivided by operating activities in fiscal 2011rfrdiscal 2010
was primarily due to a decrease in net incometdltions in working capital balances and lower defitax
liabilities. Higher working capital balances useéi4bmillion in cash in fiscal 2011 whereas lowerrking capital
balances provided $0.8 million in cash in fiscal@0The net increase in working capital balancd&sgal 2011 wa
primarily due to increasing commodity chemical samtd the resulting increase in selling pricescivinesulted in
an increase in trade receivables and inventoriggfa offset by an increase in accounts payablé imcome tax
payable balance due to the timing of tax paymdriis.increase in cash provided by operating actwiin fiscal
2010 from fiscal 2009 was primarily due to the flwations in working capital balances and increaksfdrred tax
liabilities in fiscal 2010. Due to the nature ofraperations, which includes purchases of largentiis of bulk
chemicals, the timing of purchases can resultgniicant changes in working capital investment #melresulting
operating cash flow. Historically, our cash reqoiemts for working capital increase during the pfiom April
through November as caustic soda inventory levelsease as the majority of barges are receivedgltinis period.
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Cash and investments available-for-sale of $37Idomiat April 3, 2011 decreased by $16.3 millis a
compared with March 28, 2010, due to the acquisitibVertex, capital expenditures and dividend pegts, which
were partially offset by cash generated from openat Investments available-for-sale as of Apri2@11 and
March 28, 2010 consisted of certificates of depadit maturities ranging from three months to tveays.

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures were $12.4 million in fisc@ll2, $8.3 million in fiscal 2010 and $14.2 millionfiscal
2009. The total capital expenditures in fiscal 26drinew facilities were approximately $1.6 millisompared to
$2.5 million and $7.5 million in fiscal 2010 and@) respectively. Additional significant capitalpenditures durin
fiscal 2011 consisted of approximately $3.8 millfon business expansion and process improvemejeqiso
$3.2 million for other facility improvements andwmeylinders, $2.9 million for regulatory and saf@typrovements
and $0.9 million for new and replacement routestilecks for the Water Treatment segment. We expett
recurring capital expenditures for storage, faediimprovements, returnable containers, and reaites trucks in
fiscal 2012 will be comparable with the fiscal 2Gdend rate, although we are projecting highertabgpending fc
business expansion and project improvement prosésgiscal 2012, with total capital spending iscfl 2012
currently projected to be approximately $20 millid¥ie expect our cash flows from operations wilbéicient to
fund our capital expenditures in fiscal 2012.

Dividends

During the second quarter of fiscal 2011, our BazrDirectors increased our semi-annual cash dnddzy
7.1% to $0.30 per share from $0.28 per share. ditiad, due to the Company’s strong cash positiovedh by its
financial performance in fiscal 2010, the Boardafectors authorized a special dividend of $0.10gbare to be
paid concurrently with the semi-annual regular diévid in October 2010. We first started paying digitdends in
1985 and have continued to do so since. Futuréeiid levels will be dependent upon our resultspefrations,
financial position, cash flows and other factorg] avill be evaluated by our Board of Directors.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The following table provides aggregate informatidrout our contractual payment obligations and gréos ir
which payments are due:

Payments Due by Period

More than
Contractual Obligation 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 5 Years Total
(In thousands)
Operating lease obligatiol $66S $66€ $68z $67C $62z2 $ 3,73¢  $7,05(

Critical Accounting Policies

In preparing the financial statements, we follovlgenerally accepted accounting principles (“GAARhe
preparation of these financial statements requise® make estimates and judgments that affecefharted
amounts of assets, liabilities, sales and expeasestelated disclosure of contingent assets adities. We re-
evaluate our estimates on an on-going basis. Qunates are based on historical experience andidous other
assumptions that are believed to be reasonable timeleircumstances. Actual results may differ fribrase
estimates under different assumptions and conditidfe consider the following policies to involve timost
judgment in the preparation of our financial staters.
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Revenue Recognitior- We recognize revenue when there is evidence teatibtomer has agreed to purct
the product, the price and terms of the sale asglfithe product has shipped and title passesrtoustiomer,
performance has occurred, and collection of theivable is reasonably assured.

Inventories — Inventories are valued at the lower of cost arkat. On a quarterly basis, management assesses
the inventory quantities on hand to estimated itisage and sales and, if necessary, writes donet t@alizable
the value of inventory deemed obsolete or excdssugh management considers these reserves adeqadate
proper, changes in sales volumes due to unexpectatbmic or competitive conditions are among tleéofs that
could materially affect the adequacy of this reserv

LIFO Reserve— Inventories, with the exception of Vertex invenésiiare primarily valued at the lower of ¢
or market with cost being determined using the LHR€&hod. We may incur significant fluctuations ur gross
margins due primarily to changes in the cost ahgls, large-volume component of inventory. Theerdf this
inventory component may fluctuate depending orbtilance between supply and demand. Managemenwethe
LIFO reserve on a quarterly basis. Vertex invertoare valued at the lower of cost or market watt being
determined using the FIFO method.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets- We review the recoverability of loriyed assets to be held and used, ¢
as property, plant and equipment and intangibletassibject to amortization, when events or chamges
circumstances occur that indicate the carryingevaliithe asset or asset group may not be recoeesth as
prolonged industry downturn or significant redunsian projected future cash flows. The assessnfgrissible
impairment is based on our ability to recover tagying value of the asset or asset group frome#tpected future
pre-tax cash flows (undiscounted) of the relategrations. If these cash flows are less than thyiogrvalue of
such asset or asset group, an impairment is recegi@iqual to the amount by which the carrying vekeeeds the
fair value of the long-lived assets. The measurgérakBimpairment requires us to estimate future déshis and the
fair value of long-lived assets. Significant judgrteeand assumptions are required in the forecdstafe operating
results used in the preparation of the estimateddiwcash flows. We periodically review the appiatgness of the
estimated useful lives of our long-lived assetsar@Zfes in these estimates could have a materiat effethe
assessment of long-lived assets subject to amtiotizal here were no triggering events that requimederial assets
to be evaluated for impairment during fiscal 2011.

Income Taxes— In the preparation of our financial statememanagement calculates income taxes. This
includes estimating the current tax liability adlves assessing temporary differences resulting fiifferent
treatment of items for tax and book accounting paes. These differences result in deferred taxsasd
liabilities, which are recorded on the balance sHEegese assets and liabilities are analyzed regwdad
management assesses the likelihood that deferxexbsts will be recovered from future taxable ineoA
valuation allowance is established to the exteat thanagement believes that recovery is not likeserves are
also established for potential and ongoing audifederal and state tax issues. We routinely monite potential
impact of such situations and believe that it igperly reserved. Valuations related to amounts cavetltax rates
could be impacted by changes to tax codes, changdstutory tax rates, our future taxable incomels and the
results of tax audits.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

See Item 8, “Note 1 — Nature of Business and Sicgmit Accounting Policies” of the Notes to Consatietl
Financial Statements for information regarding ntlgeadopted accounting standards or accountinglstals to be
adopted in the future.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are subject to the risk inherent in the cycliwatiure of commodity chemical prices. However, wendt
currently purchase forward contracts or otherwisgage in hedging activities with respect to thechase of
commodity chemicals. We attempt to pass changematerial prices on to our customers, however, thezeno
assurances that we will be able to pass on theases in the future.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of HawKims;

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Hawkins, Inc. and subsidiaries (the
Company) as of April 3, 2011, and March 28, 201 the related consolidated statements of incohseholders’
equity, and cash flows for each of the years initi@year period ended April 3, 2011. In connection vath audits
of the financial statements, we have also audhiedihancial statement schedule listed in the Inmtdtem 15, as of
and for the years ended April 3, 2011 and March2P80. We also have audited the Comparigternal control ove
financial reporting as of April 3, 2011, based oitetia established imternal Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s
management is responsible for these financialrsités and financial statement schedule, for maimgieffective
internal control over financial reporting, and ftr assessment of the effectiveness of internarcebaver financial
reporting, included in the accompanying ManagenseR€port on Internal Control Over Financial RepagytiOur
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements and financial statement scheshadlean opinion
on the Company'’s internal control over financialaging based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting Oversighago
(United States). Those standards require that ame ghd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout
whether the financial statements are free of matarisstatement and whether effective internal mbmiver
financial reporting was maintained in all materedpects. Our audit of the financial statementldes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amouditslianlosures in the financial statements, assg$s@éaccounting
principles used and significant estimates made édgagement, and evaluating the overall financiaéstant
presentation. Our audit of internal control oveaficial reporting includes obtaining an understagaf internal
control over financial reporting, assessing thk tiimt a material weakness exists, and testingeaalliating the
design and operating effectiveness of internalrobitiased on the assessed risk. Our audit alsodaslperforming
such other procedures as we considered necessduy @ircumstances. We believe that our auditsigeoa
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesass
regarding the reliability of financial reportingathe preparation of financial statements for exaepurposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipieee A company’s internal control over finanaiaporting
includes those policies and procedures that (pjpeto the maintenance of records that, in redsiendetail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions disghositions of the assets of the company; (2) idmveasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as nactsgarmit preparation of financial statementsd@gordance wit
generally accepted accounting principles, andréipts and expenditures of the company are breadg only in
accordance with authorizations of management amdtdirs of the company; and (3) provide reasonatdeirance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauitted acquisition, use, or disposition of the comps assets that
could have a material effect on the financial stegets.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or déte
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are subjechéorisk that
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesditions, or that the degree of compliance Withpolicies
or procedures may deteriorate.
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In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegaferred to above present fairly, in all matenéspects, the
financial position of Hawkins, Inc. and subsidiaras of April 3, 2011 and March 28, 2010, and Hseilts of their
operations and their cash flows for each of thes/gathe two-year period ended April 3, 2011, amformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Ails@ur opinion, such financial statement schedwleen
considered in relation to the basic consolidatedrfcial statements taken as a whole, presentg, faurall material
respects, the information set forth therein as piil/8, 2011 and March 28, 2010 and for each ofytb&rs in the
two-year period ended April 3, 2011. Furthermoneguir opinion, Hawkins, Inc. maintained, in all el respects,
effective internal control over financial reportiag of April 3, 2011, based on criteria establisinddternal
Control — Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifriee Treadway
Commission.

The Company acquired Vertex Chemical Corporatidfe(tex”) during fiscal year 2011, and management
excluded from its assessment of the effectivenEs'ecCompany’s internal control over financial ogjing as of
April 3, 2011, Vertex’s internal control over fingial reporting associated with approximately 12%ovél assets
and approximately 3% of total revenues includethenconsolidated financial statements of the Compamnf and
for the year ended April 3, 2011. Our audit of intd control over financial reporting for the Compgaalso exclude
an evaluation of the internal control over finahcéporting of Vertex.

/sl KPMG LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota

June 9, 2011

22




Table of Contents
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Hagikinc.
Minneapolis, Minnesota

We have audited the accompanying consolidatednséatts of income, shareholders’ equity, and cashsflof
Hawkins, Inc. (the “Company”) for the year endedrbha29, 2009. These financial statements are t@oresibility
of the Company’s Management. Our audit also indutie financial statement schedule for the yeaednd
March 29, 2009, listed in the Index at Item 15. §éé@nancial statements are the responsibilithef@ompany’s
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements and financééstent
schedule based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadgdof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBoa
(United States). Those standards require that ame ghd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout
whether the financial statements are free of madterisstatement. An audit also includes examinamga test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosuréigifinancial statements. An audit also includegssing the
accounting principles used and significant estismatade by management, as well as evaluating thralbfieancial
statement presentation. We believe that our auditiges a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referr@adlbove present fairly, in all material respedts, results of the
Company’s operations and their cash flows for tharyended March 29, 2009, in conformity with acaimn
principles generally accepted in the United Stafesmerica. Also, in our opinion, such financiahtment
schedule, when considered in relation to the Hasanicial statements taken as a whole, preseny fairall material
respects, the information set forth therein as afdé#l 29, 2009.

/sl Deloitte & Touche LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota

June 5, 2009
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HAWKINS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalel
Investmentsavailable-for-sale
Trade receivable— less allowance for doubtful accour
$406 for 2011 and $300 for 20
Inventories
Income taxes receivab
Prepaid expenses and other current a:

Total current asse
PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT
Land
Buildings and improvemen
Machinery and equipme!
Transportation equipme
Office furniture and equipment including computgstems

Less accumulated depreciation and amortize
Net property, plant, and equipme
OTHER ASSETS

Goodwill

Intangible asset— less accumulated amortizatic
$1,165 for 2011 and $851 for 20

Long-term investment

Other

Total other asse!

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payabl— trade
Dividends payabli
Accrued payroll and employee bene
Deferred income taxe
Container deposil
Other accrual
Total current liabilities
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES
Total liabilities
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY:

April 3, 2011

March 28, 201(

(In thousands, except share date

Common stock; authorized: 30,000,000 shares of6H8ad value; 10,307,177 and
10,253,458 shares issued and outstanding for 200 2@10, respectivel 51¢

Additional paic-in capital
Retained earning
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) inct

Total shareholde’ equity

$ 1894 $ 18,77
15,28¢ 25,92¢
35,73 24,83
29,21 21,32
2,197 4,43(
2,87: 2,20¢
104,24 97,49
4,367 1,84(
47,10; 39,23t
35,74( 28,47
14,03¢ 11,93
11,72¢ 11,23;
112,97 92,72
50,57 44,96¢
62,39 47,75¢
6,231 1,20
8,811 3,63t
3,17¢ 8,97:

148 1,22¢
18,36: 15,03¢
$ 185000 $ 160,29
' EQUITY

$ 2335 $  13,94(
3,09t 2,87¢
7,76 7,90¢
2,61¢ 3,36

97¢ 924
1,66¢ 1,59:
39,47 30,60
1,21¢ 632
7,87¢€ 7,55¢
48,56 38,79

512
41,06( 39,02
95,01 81,92

(145) 37
136,44 121,49

$ 185,000 $ 160,29

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ#tsients.
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HAWKINS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Fiscal Year Ended

April 3, 2011 March 28, 201(  March 29, 200¢
(In thousands, except share and p-share data)

Sales $ 29764: $ 257,09¢ $ 284,35t
Cost of sale: (235,739 (192,654 (221,936
Gross profit 61,90: 64,44" 62,42(
Selling, general and administrative exper (29,940 (25,605 (25,087
Operating incom: 31,96: 38,84( 37,331
Investment incom 338 28€ 33¢
Income from continuing operations before incomes& 32,29¢ 39,12¢ 37,67¢
Provision for income taxe (11,98) (15,389 (14,25)
Income from continuing operatiol 20,31+ 23,73¢ 23,424
Income from discontinued operations, net of — 10¢ 34C
Net income $ 2031« $ 23,847 $ 23,76¢
Weighted average number of shares outstarbasic 10,260,13 10,250,97. 10,243,97
Weighted average number of shares outstar-diluted 10,352,63 10,282,99 10,249,02
Basic earnings per she

Earnings per share from continuing operati $ 19 $ 232 % 2.2¢

Earnings per share from discontinued operat — 0.01 0.0:

Basic earnings per she $ 1.9¢ 3 23 % 2.32
Diluted earnings per sha

Earnings per share from continuing operati $ 19 $ 231 % 2.2¢

Earnings per share from discontinued operat — 0.01 0.0z

Diluted earnings per sha $ 1.9¢ $ 23z $ 2.32
Cash dividends declared per common sl $ 0.7¢ $ 0.6 $ 0.52

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ#tsients.
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HAWKINS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Accumulated

Additional Other Total
Common Stock Paid-in  Retained Comprehensive Shareholders
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Equity
(In thousands, except share dats
BALANCE — March 30, 200¢ 10,239,45 $ 51z $ 38,09: $46,42¢ $ (100$ 85,021
Cash dividend (5,339 (5,339
Stock compensation exper 277 277
Vesting of restricted stoc 7,00C — — —
Comprehensive incom
Adjustment for sale of securities, net of
tax 6 6
Unrealized loss on post-retirement pla
liability, net of tax (6) (6)
Net income 23,76¢ 23,76¢
Comprehensive incorr 23,76¢
BALANCE — March 29, 200¢ 10,246,45 512 38,36¢ 64,86( (10) 103,73(
Cash dividend (6,786 (6,786€)
Stock compensation exper 65¢ 65¢
Vesting of restricted stoc 7,00(C 1 — 1
Comprehensive incom
Unrealized gain on
available-for-sale investments, net c
tax 66 66
Unrealized loss on post-retirement plan
liability, net of tax 19 (19
Net income 23,841 23,841
Comprehensive incon 23,89
BALANCE — March 28, 201( 10,253,45 51% 39,027 81,92: 37 121,49¢
Cash dividend (7,222) (7,222)
Stock compensation exper 1,952 1,952
Tax benefit on share-based compensation
plans 281 281
Vesting of restricted stoc 58,65: 3 3 —
Shares surrendered for payroll ta (4,939 (1) (197) (19¢)
Comprehensive incom
Unrealized gain on
available-for-saleinvestments, net of te (63 (63)
Unrealized loss on post-retirement pla
liability, net of tax (119) (119
Net income 20,31« 20,31
Comprehensive incorr 20,13:
BALANCE — April 3, 2011 10,307,17 $ 51t $41,06( $95,01: $ (145)$ 136,44

See accompanying notes to consolidated financssients.
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HAWKINS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Fiscal Year Ended
April 3, 2011 March 28, 201( March 29, 200¢
(In thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income $ 20,31 $ 23,847 $ 23,76¢
Reconciliation to cash flow:
Depreciation and amortizatic 7,14¢ 6,29 5,581
Deferred income taxe (600) 7,152 3,04¢
Stock compensation exper 1,952 65¢ 2717
Loss (gain) on sale of investmel — — 16
Loss from property dispose 127 12 114

Changes in operating accounts (using) providingy,cast of effect
of acquisition:

Trade receivable (5,929 4,05( (5,099
Inventories (3,147 514 (7,830
Accounts payabl 5,35¢ (462) 1,844
Accrued liabilities 15¢ (322 2,76¢
Income taxe: 2,52¢ (2,409 (7€)
Other 61¢ (55€) 128
Net cash provided by operating activit 28,53 38,78: 24,42¢
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant, and equipm: (12,427 (8,33)) (14,217
Purchases of investmer (24,210 (41,240 —
Sale and maturities of investme 30,54¢ 6,45( 2,841
Proceeds from property dispos 142 14¢ 93
Acquisition of Vertex (25,500 — —
Net cash used in investing activiti (21,447 (42,977 (12,277
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash dividends pai (7,00%) (6,579 (5,125
Excess tax benefit from shi-based compensatic 281 — —
Shares surrendured for payroll ta: (19¢) — —
Net cash used in financing activiti (6,927) (6,579 (5,125
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CAS
EQUIVALENTS 16¢ (10,764 8,027
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—
Beginning of perioc 18,77: 29,53¢ 21,50¢
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—
End of perioc $ 18,94( $ 18,77: $ 29,53¢
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION —
Cash paid during the year for income ta $ 9771 $ 10,65¢ $ 11,58¢
Noncash investing activitie—
Acquisition purchase price in accounts pay: $ 170¢ $ — $ —
Capital expenditures in accounts paye $ 145 $ 1,11¢ $ 1,14z

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.
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HAWKINS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1—Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Polies

Nature of Business —We have two reportable segments: Industrial anceWekteatment. The Industrial Gro
operates our Industrial segment and specializpsoviding industrial chemicals, products and seesito the
agriculture, energy, electronics, food, chemicakpssing, pulp and paper, pharmaceutical, medaate and
plating industries. The group also manufacturessatid certain food-grade products, including catepted Cheese
Phos® liquid phosphate, lactates and other blended ptsdilibe Water Treatment Group operates our Water
Treatment segment and specializes in providing ate®m equipment and solutions for potable watemitipal anc
industrial wastewater, industrial process water mortresidential swimming pool water. The group thes
resources and flexibility to treat systems rangmgize from a small single well to a multi-million
gallon-per-day facility.

Fiscal Year —Ouir fiscal year is a 52/53-week year ending onSthilday closest to March 31. Our fiscal year
ending April 3, 2011 (“fiscal 2011") is a 53-week&ayr. The fiscal years ended March 28, 2010 (“fi2€dl0”), and
March 29, 2009 (“fiscal 2009") were 52-week yedrse fiscal year ending on April 1, 2012 (“fiscall20) will be a
52-week year. Beginning in fiscal 2012, we changedquarters to a 4-4-5 week convention.

Principles of Consolidation —The consolidated financial statements include tw®ants of Hawkins, Inc. and
its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All intercompanyrtsactions and accounts have been eliminated.

Estimates —The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”) requires management to makeneates and assumptions that affect the reportediata f
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingesets and liabilities at the date of the findratEtements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses duengplorted period. Actual results could differ fridmse
estimates.

Revenue Recognition e recognize revenue when there is evidence teatuktomer has agreed to purct
the product, the price and terms of the sale asglfithe product has shipped and title passesrtoustiomer,
performance has occurred, and collection of theivable is reasonably assured.

Shipping and Handling —All shipping and handling amounts billed to custosn&re included in revenues.
Costs incurred related to the shipping and handifmgroducts are included in cost of sales.

Fair Value Measurements —Fhe Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB4ued an accounting
standard codified in ASC 820 “Fair Value Measuretaemd Disclosures” that provides a single defnitior fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring faine and expands disclosures about fair value measunts.
Under this standard, fair value is defined as thepgice, or the amount that would be receiveddth an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transantbetween market participants as of the measuredage. This
standard also establishes a hierarchy for inpugd irsmeasuring fair value that maximizes the dsgbeervable
inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inpytequiring that the most observable inputs eswghen
available. Observable inputs are inputs markeigjaints would use in valuing the asset or liapitleveloped basi
on market data obtained from sources independeamd.diinobservable inputs are inputs that reflectassumptions
about the factors market participants would useaining the asset or liability developed based uppenbest
information available in the circumstances.

We adopted the standard as amended by subsequSit $tAndards at the beginning of fiscal 2009 wagpec
to fair value measurements of financial assetsliabdities and the beginning of fiscal 2010 formifimancial assets
and liabilities that are recognized or disclosethatvalue in our consolidated financial statensentt a recurring
basis (at least annually).
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HAWKINS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

The financial assets and liabilities that are rexsueed and reported at fair value for each regpgpariod
include marketable securities. Other than the apfitin of purchase accounting as a result of teXecquisition,
there were no fair value measurements with redpendnfinancial assets or liabilities that are grieed or
disclosed at fair value in our consolidated finahstatements on a recurring basis subsequent teffictive date ¢
this standard. The adoption did not have a matgnipact on our consolidated financial conditiorsuks of
operations or cash flows.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value #assified using the following hierarchy, which iaged upon th
transparency of inputs to the valuation as of tleasurement date:

Level 1: Valuation is based on observable inputs suctuated market prices (unadjusted) for identical
assets or liabilities in active markets.

Level 2: Valuation is based on inputs such as quoted rharkees for similar assets or liabilities in agtiv
markets or other inputs that are observable foatset or liability, either directly or indirectifior substantially
the full term of the financial instrument.

Level 3: Valuation is based upon other unobservable ingmatisare significant to the fair value
measurement.

In making fair value measurements, observable nakim must be used when available. When inpus tase
measure fair value fall within different levelstbg hierarchy, the level within which the fair valmeasurement is
categorized is based on the lowest level inputithsignificant to the fair value measurement.

Cash Equivalents —€ash equivalents include all liquid debt instrursgjprimarily cash funds, money market
accounts and certificates of deposit) purchaseld avitoriginal maturity of three months or less. Batances
maintained at financial institutions may, at timesgeed federally insured limits.

Investments —Available-for-sale securities consist of certifiesibf deposit and are valued at current market
value, with the resulting unrealized gains anddessxcluded from earnings and reported, net ofasug, separate
component of shareholders’ equity until realizedyAmpairment loss to reduce an investment’s cag@mount to
its fair market value is recognized in income whethecline in the fair market value of an individeaturity below
its cost or carrying value is determined to be othan temporary.

Trade Receivables and Concentrations of Credit Risik=inancial instruments, which potentially subjectas
a concentration of credit risk, principally consiétrade receivables. We sell our principal praduo a large
number of customers in many different industridserg are no concentrations of business transadtbeaw
particular customer or sales from a particular iserer geographic area that would significantly &apus in the ne
term. To reduce credit risk, we routinely assesdittancial strength of our customers. We recordliowance for
doubtful accounts to reduce our receivables tonanumt we estimate is collectible from our customEstimates
used in determining the allowance for doubtful acite are based on historical collection experiengggent trends,
aging of accounts receivable and periodic evalaataf our customers’ financial condition. We invest excess
cash balances at times in certificates of depositeamoney market account at two separate finamsttutions
where the cash balances may exceed federally mhdiongs. The institutions are two of the largestranercial
banking institutions in the country and both hawantained a AA credit rating.

Inventories —Inventories, consisting primarily of finished goopdse primarily valued at the lower of cost or
net realizable value, with cost being determinddgithe last-in, first-out (“LIFO”) method. Vertexinventory cos!
which represents approximately 18% of the totaldrIRventory balance at April 3, 2011, is determinsthg the
first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) method.

Property, Plant and Equipment —Property is stated at cost and depreciated or @&adrover the lives of the
assets, using straight-line method. Estimated res10 to 40 years for buildings and improvemedits 20 years
for machinery and equipment; 3 to 10 years forgpantation equipment; and 3 to 10 years for offiseiture and
equipment including computer systems.
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HAWKINS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Significant improvements that add to productiveazdfy or extend the lives of properties are cajziéal. Costs
for repairs and maintenance are charged to ex@seurred. When property is retired or otherwiisposed of,
the cost and related accumulated depreciation ortaration are removed from the accounts and alaye® gains ¢
losses are included in income.

We review the recoverability of long-lived assetde held and used, such as property, plant anigraqut,
when events or changes in circumstances occuirthaate the carrying value of the asset or assmetgmay not b
recoverable, such as prolonged industry downtusigmificant reductions in projected future casiwi. The
assessment of possible impairment is based onbility & recover the carrying value of the asseasset group
from the expected future pre-tax cash flows (uralisted) of the related operations. If these cashdlare less than
the carrying value of such asset or asset groupmpairment loss would be measured by the amountainrying
value exceeds the fair value of the long-lived &sSEhe measurement of impairment requires ustimate future
cash flows and the fair value of long-lived asskits material long-lived assets were determinedetntpaired
during fiscal 2011, 2010, or 2009.

Goodwill and Identifiable Intangible Assets -Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of aedui
businesses over the fair value of identifiable thlegnet assets and identifiable intangible agsetshased. Goodw
is tested at least annually for impairment, aneéssed for impairment more frequently if eventgloanges in
circumstances indicate that the asset might beineghal he impairment test is performed using a step process.
In the first step, the fair value of the reportingt is compared with the carrying amount of theoréing unit,
including goodwill. If the estimated fair valueléss than the carrying amount of the reporting, @mitindication the
goodwill impairment exists and a second step mestdmpleted in order to determine the amount ofytrawill
impairment, if any, which should be recorded. le second step, an impairment loss would be recedriar any
excess of the carrying amount of the reporting'sigibodwill over the implied fair value of that giwill. The
implied fair value of goodwill is determined by@dhting the fair value of the reporting unit in armer similar to a
purchase price allocation. The fair value of thgoréing unit is determined using a discounted dkmsh analysis.
Projecting discounted future cash flows requiretounake significant estimates regarding futureenexes and
expenses, projected capital expenditures, changeerking capital and the appropriate discount.réites
projections also take into account several fadtareiding current and estimated economic trendsautlbok, costs
of raw materials, consideration of our market cfgation in comparison to the estimated fair valo&our
reporting units determined using discounted caslv inalyses and other factors which are beyondanirol.

Our primary identifiable intangible assets includistomer lists, trade secrets, non-compete agréaemen
trademarks, and trade names acquired in previcsisdss acquisitions. Identifiable intangibles Wittite lives are
amortized and those identifiable intangibles wittidfinite lives are not amortized. The values as=igo the
intangible assets with finite lives are being arzed on average over approximately 14 years. Itiabke intangible
assets that are subject to amortization are ealifat impairment whenever events or changes aunistances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be rexale. Identifiable intangible assets not subjearmortization
are tested for impairment annually or more freglyahevents warrant. The impairment test considta
comparison of the fair value of the intangible &sgéh its carrying amount.

We completed step one of our annual goodwill intpaint evaluation during the fourth quarter of fiseal 1
and determined that the reporting unit’s fair vadubstantially exceeded its carrying value. Acaugtyi, step two of
the impairment analysis was not required. We atsppteted an impairment test of intangible assetsuabject to
amortization during the fourth quarter, in whicle flair value exceeded the carrying amount. Addéilyn no
impairment charges were required for fiscal 2012@09.
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Income Taxes —in the preparation of our consolidated financiatetents, management calculates income
taxes based upon the estimated effective ratecaiydi to operating results for the full fiscal y€Hnis includes
estimating the current tax liability as well asesssng differences resulting from different treattaf items for tax
and book accounting purposes. These differencett irgleferred tax assets and liabilities, which wecorded on
the balance sheet. These assets and liabilitiesnaigzed regularly and management assesses éfiadiad that
deferred tax assets will be recovered from futarable income. We record any interest and penatiased to
income taxes as income tax expense in the stateroémmcome.

The effect of income tax positions are recognizely @ those positions are more likely than nobeing
sustained. Changes in recognition or measurememhade as facts and circumstances change.

Stock-Based Compensation We account for stock-based compensation on a &uirvbasis. The estimated
grant date fair value of each stock-based awarecisgnized in expense over the requisite servidegégenerally
the vesting period). The estimated fair value aheaption is calculated using the Black-Scholesooppricing
model. Non-vested share awards are recorded asetmaon expense over the requisite service pebasisd on
the market value on the date of grant.

Earnings Per Share —Basic earnings per share (“EPS") are computed Wadidg net income by the weighted-
average number of common shares outstanding. BIERS are computed by dividing net income by thigkted-
average number of common shares outstanding imgjutie incremental shares assumed to be issuedthgon
exercise of stock options and the incremental shassumed to be issued as performance units andtessstock.
Basic and diluted EPS were calculated using tHevidhg:

April 3, March 28, March 29,
2011 2010 2009
Weighted average common shares outstan— basic 10,260,13  10,250,97.  10,243,97
Dilutive impact of stock options, performance unésd restricted stor 92,49¢ 32,01t 5,05
Weighted average common shares outstan— diluted 10,352,63  10,282,99 10,249,02

There were no shares or stock options excluded fhencalculation of weighted average common shares
diluted EPS for fiscal 2011. Stock options totalf@®665 in fiscal 2010 and 61,332 in fiscal 2009ehbeen
excluded from the calculation of diluted EPS beeatg effect of including the shares would be diltitive.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities ‘We do not have any freestanding or embedded ds@gat
and it is our policy to not enter into contractatthontain them.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements —

Intangibles — Goodwill and Other 4/ December 2010, the FASB issued amended guidanoedify Step 1
of the goodwill impairment test for reporting unitith zero or negative carrying amounts. For thegmrting units,
an entity is required to perform Step 2 of the g@idmpairment test if it is more likely than ndtat a goodwill
impairment exists. In determining whether it is mbkely than not that a goodwill impairment exjsis entity
should consider whether there are any adversetgiinadi factors indicating that an impairment maisexThe
modified guidance is effective for fiscal years amigrim periods within those years beginning aRecember 15,
2010.

Business Combinations +# December 2010, the FASB updated guidance tifclde acquisition date that
should be used for reporting the pro forma finanafmrmation disclosures when comparative finahstatements
are presented. The updated guidance is effectieusiness combinations for which the acquisitiateds on or
after the beginning of the first annual reportirggipd beginning on or after December 15, 2010.
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Fair Value Measurements and DisclosurednJdanuary 2010, the FASB issued additional dissi®s
requirements for assets and liabilities held at\falue. Specifically, the new guidance requirgsass presentation
of activities within the Level 3 roll forward andids a new requirement to disclose transfers incanaf Level 1
and 2 measurements. This guidance is applicalad# émtities currently required to provide disclossiabout
recurring and nonrecurring fair value measureméiiis. effective date for these disclosures is trs finterim or
annual reporting period beginning after DecemberR089, except for the gross presentation of thesL & roll
forward information, which is required for annuaporting periods beginning after December 15, 28idfor
interim reporting periods within those years.

Note 2—Business Combinations

On January 14, 2011, we completed the acquisitithepassets of Vertex Chemical Corporation, N&elksh
Co. Inc. and R.H.A. Corporation, (collectively, “Nex”), pursuant to an Asset Purchase Agreemeetdas of
January 10, 2011 (the “Asset Purchase Agreemehs’provided in the Purchase Agreement, we acquired
substantially all of the assets used in Vertex'sitess, which is primarily the manufacture andrithistion of
sodium hypochlorite and the distribution of causticla, hydrochloric acid and related products. \&ld pash of
$25.5 million at closing and assumed certain liabd of Vertex. The purchase price was revise®2p.2 million as
provided in the Purchase Agreement to reflect al fivorking capital adjustment of $1.7 million, whiwas paid in
early fiscal 2012. In connection with the acquisitive incurred acquisition related costs of $0.[fiani, which were
recorded as selling, general and administrativereses in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

The acquisition has been accounted for under theisition method of accounting in accordance withiGA
Topic 805,Business CombinationdJnder the acquisition method of accounting, ttaeltestimated purchase pric
allocated to the net tangible and intangible assie¥ertex acquired in connection with the acquosif based on
their estimated fair values.

The allocation of the purchase price to assetsismtjand liabilities assumed follows:

Amount

(In thousands,
Accounts receivabl $ 4,97¢
Inventories 4,75(
Other current asse 19¢
Property, plant and equipme 8,991
Goodwill 5,027
Intangibles 5,49(
Accounts payabl (2,017)
Accrued employee benefi (210
Total purchase pric $  27,20¢

The allocation of the purchase price to the asseisired and liabilities assumed resulted in tltegaition of
the following intangible assets:

Weighted
Amount Average Life
(In thousands)
Customer relationshiy $3,45( 20 years
Trademark 1,24( 10 years
Carrier relationship 80C 10 years

Intangible assets acquir $5,49(
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The fair value of the identified intangible asssts estimated using an income approach. Undentioerie
approach an intangible asset’s fair value is etjutiie present value of future economic benefitsetaerived from
ownership of an asset. Indications of value areliged by discounting future net cash flows tortheg¢sent value
at market-based rates of return.

The goodwill recognized as a result of the Verteguasition is primarily attributable to expectedsygies, as
well as Vertex’'s assembled work force.

Vertex operating results are included in our Caodstéd Statements of Income in our Industrial segrfrem
the date of acquisition.

The following unaudited pro forma condensed considid financial results of operations are preseasafithe
Vertex acquisition had been completed at the béginof the each period presented:

Years Ended
April 3, March 28,
2011 2010
(In thousands, except share and p-
share data)

Pro forma net sale $ 329,65: $ 299,28!
Pro forma net earning 21,88¢ 25,47¢
Pro forma earnings per sha
Basic $ 2.1% $ 2.4¢
Diluted 2.11 2.4¢
Weighted average common shares outstani
Basic 10,260,13 10,250,97
Diluted 10,352,63 10,282,99

These unaudited pro forma condensed consolidataddial results have been prepared for illustrgiweoses
only and do not purport to be indicative of theutessof operations that actually would have resliltad the
acquisition occurred on the first day of each figgaiod presented, or of future results of thesmidated entities.
The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidateddiahinformation does not reflect any operatinficegncies
and cost savings that may be realized from thegiaten of the acquisition.

Note 3—Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

The following table presents information about fimancial assets and liabilities that are measatddir value
on a recurring basis as of April 3, 2011 and M&8h2010, and indicates the fair value hierarchghefvaluation
techniques utilized to determine such fair value.

April 3,
Description 2011 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(In thousands)
Assets:
Cash $18,48: $18,48: $ — $—
Certificates of depos 18,46: 18,46: —
Money market securitie 45k 45E — —
March 28,
Description 2010 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(In thousands)
Assets:
Cash $18,66! $18,66: $ — $—
Certificates of depos 34,90( —  34,90( —
Money market securitie 111 111 — —
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Our financial assets that are measured at fairevatua recurring basis are certificates of deftSiD’s”), with
maturities ranging from three months to two yealngctv fall within valuation technique Level 2. Th®G are
classified as investments in current assets andummant assets on the Consolidated Balance Shests. April 3,
2011, the CD’s in current assets have a fair vafugl5.3 million, and in noncurrent assets, the Cixve a fair
value of $3.2 million.

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalentsuaats approximates fair value, as maturities areetimonth
or less. We did not have any financial liabilitgiruments subject to recurring fair value measurgsas of April 3
2011 and March 28, 2010.

The contractual maturities of available-for-salewsties at April 3, 2011 are shown in the tabléobe

Amortized Fair Unrealized
Cost Value Gain/(loss’

(In thousands)
Within one yea $ 1527( $15,28¢ $ 16
Between one and two yes 3,18¢ 3,17¢ (10
Total available-for-salesecurities $ 18,45¢ $18,46. $ 6

The contractual maturities of available-for-saleusities at March 28, 2010 are shown in the takelew.

Amortized Fair Unrealized
Cost Value Gains
(In thousands)
Within one yea $ 25,89( $25,92¢ $ 38
Between one and two yes 8,90( 8,97: 72
Total available-for-salesecurities $34,79C $3490( $ 11C

Realized gains and losses were not material foaffid011, fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2009.

Note 4—Inventories

Inventories at April 3, 2011 and March 28, 2010gisted of the following:

2011 2010
(In thousands)
Finished goods (FIFO basi $35,07.  $23,25¢
LIFO reserve (5,859 (1,93))
Net inventory $29,21° $21,32]

The FIFO value of inventories accounted for underltiFO method were $28.6 million at April 3, 2041d
$23.1 million at March 28, 2010. The remaindertaf inventory was valued and accounted for undeFtR©
method.

We increased the LIFO reserve by $3.9 million stél 2011 and decreased the reserve by $12.6 mitiio
fiscal 2010 due primarily to significant changesnnentory costs in both years, as well as chaigas/entory
product mix and higher inventory volumes at the efifiscal 2011.
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Note 5—Goodwill and Other Identifiable Intangible Assets

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill wasdollows:

Amount
(In thousands;
Balance as of March 29, 20 $ 1,204
Fiscal 2010 activity —
Balance as of March 28, 20 1,20¢
Vertex acquisitior 5,027
Balance as of April 3, 201 $ 6,231
A summary of our intangible assets as of April@1L2and March 28, 2010 were as follows:
2011
Gross Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Net
(In thousands)

Finite-life intangible asset:
Customer relationshig $ 550¢ $ (423 $5,08¢
Trademark 1,24( (26) 1,21¢
Trade secret 862 (413 44¢
Carrier relationship 80C (18) 782
Other finite-life intangible asset 33¢ (285) 54
Total finite-life intangible asset 8,74¢ (1,165 7,58¢
Indefinite-life intangible asset 1,22 — 1,22
Total intangible assets, n $ 9,97¢ $ (1,165 $8,811

2010
Gross Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Net
(In thousands)

Finite-life intangible assets
Customer relationshif $ 2,05¢ % (292) $1,76¢
Trade secret 862 (30%) 557
Other finite-life intangible asset 33¢ (2549) 85
Total finite-life intangible asset 3,25¢ (851) 2,40¢
Indefinite-life intangible asset 1,225 — 1,22
Total intangible assets, n $ 4,48¢ $ (851) $3,63¢

Intangible asset amortization expense was $0.3omitluring fiscal 2011, $0.2 million during fisc2010, and
$0.5 million during fiscal 2009.

The estimated future amortization expense for iflabte intangible assets during the next five geiaras

follows:
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
(In thousands)
Estimated amortization exper $61C $59€ $59z $59z $50z
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Note 6—Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss
Components of accumulated other comprehensive iadtoss), net of tax, were as follows:

2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)

Unrealized gain (loss) ol

Available-for-saleinvestmentt $ 3 $66 $—
Pos-retirement plan liability adjustmen (148 (29 (10
Accumulated other comprehensive income (li $(145) $37  $(10)

Note 7—Share-Based Compensatior

Stock Option Awards.Our Board of Directors approved a long-term irice&nequity compensation
arrangement for our executive officers during fingt fjuarter of fiscal 2009. This long-term inceetarrangement
provides for the grant of nonqualified stock optighat vest at the end of a thrgear period and expire no later tt
10 years after the grant date. We used the Blabki8s valuation model to estimate the fair valuéghefoptions at
grant date based on the following assumptions:

June 10, 2009 Gran®  May 13, 2008 Grant

Dividend yield 2.5% 3.2%
Volatility 31.4% 28.(%
Risk-free interest rat 2.1% 3.C%
Expected life in year 4 4

Volatility was calculated using the past four yeairfistorical stock prices of our common stocke ®xpected
life is estimated based on expected future trendsttae terms and vesting periods of the optionstgrh The risk-
free interest rate is an interpolation of the ral@WJ.S. Treasury Bond Rate as of the grant date.

The following table represents the stock optionvéagtfor fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2010:

2011
Total Outstanding Exercisable
Weighted- Weighted-
Average Aggregate Average Aggregate
Exercise Intrinsic Exercise Intrinsic
Shares Price Value Shares Price Value
(In thousand, except share data)
Outstanding at beginning of ye 131,99 $ 17.8: $ 2,60i - $ — 3 —
Granted — — — —
Vested — — 66,66¢ 17.6%
Exercisec — — — —
Forfeited or expirel — — — —
Outstanding at end of ye 13199 $ 17.8: $ 4,90¢ 66,666 $ 17.67 $ 2,482
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2010
Total Outstanding Exercisable
Weighted- Weighted-
Average Aggregate Average Aggregate
Exercise Intrinsic Exercise Intrinsic
Shares Price Value Shares Price Value
(In thousand, except share data)
Outstanding at beginning of ye 61,33: $ 154 $ 44t —  $ —  $ —
Granted 70,66¢ 19.9( — —
Vested — — — —
Exercisec — — — —
Forfeited or expirel — — — —
Outstanding at end of ye 131,990 $ 17.8: $ 2,60i - $ — % —

The weighted average grant date fair value of ogtivas estimated to be $4.33 and $2.95 for optioasted ir
fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2009, respectively. The \we2d average remaining life of all outstanding erercisable
options is 7.7 years.

Annual expense related to the value of stock optiwas $0.2 million for fiscal 2011 and $0.1 millifor fiscal
2010 and fiscal 2009, substantially all of whichswacorded in SG&A expense in the Consolidatece8tants of
Income. Options awarded to John Hawkins, formeeCHkecutive Officer, became fully vested and eisatale
upon his death in March 2011, resulting in the Ereéion of expense of $0.1 million. The total faaue of options
vested during fiscal 2011 was $0.2 million. Unretiagd compensation expense related to outstanttie§ sptions
as of April 3, 2011 was $0.1 million and is expélcte be recognized over a weighted average pefi@droyears.

Performance-Based Restricted Stock UnifBur Board of Directors approved a performancesasjuity
compensation arrangement for our executive offidereng fiscal 2009. This performance-based arraregs
provides for the grant of performance-based rdsttistock units that represent a possible futisasisce of
restricted shares of our common stock based opradtax income target for the applicable fiscalry@he actual
number of restricted shares to be issued to eastugixe officer will be determined when our finaddncial
information becomes available after the applicdisieal year and will be between zero shares an8284shares in
the aggregate for fiscal 2011. The restricted shimsried will fully vest two years after the laayaf the fiscal year
on which the performance is based. We are recottimgompensation expense for the outstanding imeafioce
share units and then-converted restricted stockthreelife of the awards.

Performance-based restricted stock units were aglamour executive officers on June 2, 2010, 1009
and May 13, 2008 under this arrangement. The fatiguable represents the restricted stock actfaityfiscal 2011:

Weighted-

Average Grant

Shares Date Fair Value

Outstanding at March 28, 20: 23,000 $ 19.9(
Granted 41,32( 30.0z
Vested (52,657 26.5:
Forfeited or expirel —
Outstanding at April 3, 201 11,660 $ 25.81
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We recorded compensation expense related to thessisgaued for fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2010 andbtitential
issuance of shares for fiscal 2011 of approximabély million for fiscal 2011, $0.4 million for fisl 2010 and
$0.1 million for fiscal 2009, substantially all which was recorded in SG&A expense in the Constdiia
Statements of Income. The performance-based restratock units previously awarded to John Hawkintsling
39,820 shares, became fully vested and payable hisateath in March 2011, resulting in the accéileneof
compensation expense of $0.4 million. The total¥alue of performance-based restricted stock waisted in
fiscal 2011 was $1.4 million.

Until the performance-based restricted stock ueigsilt in the issuance of restricted stock, thelarmof
expense recorded each period is dependent upastinrate of the number of shares that will ultirhabe issued
and our then current common stock price. Upon issei@f restricted stock, we record compensatioresp over
the remaining vesting period using the award detgirg price, which was $19.90 per share on JunQ@9 and
$25.81 per share on June 2, 2010. Unrecognized eosafion expense related to nonvested restriceee simits as
of April 3, 2011 was $1.1 million and is expectedde recognized over a weighted average periodSojdars.

In conjunction with the vesting of restricted stdwld by certain of our executive officers, 4,984res were
forfeited during fiscal 2011 to cover the executdficers statutory minimum income tax withholding.

The benefits of tax deductions in excess of recghtompensation costs (excess tax benefits) eneded as
change in additional paid in capital rather thateduction of taxes paid. For fiscal 2011 $0.3 wrillof excess tax
benefit was recognized and recorded in additional m capital resulting from share-based compénsabst.

Restricted Stock AwardsAs part of their retainer, the Board of Directogseives restricted stock for their
Board services. The restricted stock awards areresqul over the requisite vesting period, whichreegh the date
of issuance and ends on the date of the next Ariviaating of Shareholders, based on the market \@iube date
of grant. The following table represents the Bosurd'stricted stock activity for fiscal 2011:

Weighted-

Average Grant

Shares Date Fair Value

Outstanding at beginning of peri 6,000 $ 18.6¢
Granted 6,96¢ 30.0(
Vested (6,000 18.6¢
Forfeited or expirel — —
Outstanding at end of peri 6,966 3 30.0C

Annual expense related to the value of restrictedkswas $0.2 million for fiscal 2011 and $0.1 ioifi for
fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2009, all of which was retam in SG&A expense in the Consolidated Statenwfritecome.
Unrecognized compensation expense related to ntat/essstricted stock awards as of April 3, 2011 was
$0.1 million and is expected to be recognized averighted average period of 0.3 years.

Note 8—Profit Sharing, Employee Stock Ownership and PensioPlans

Effective April 1, 2009, we converted our definaghtribution pension plan covering substantiallycdlbur
non-bargaining employees to a profit sharing plais. our policy to fund all costs accrued. Contitibns are made
at our discretion subject to a maximum amount adidwnder the Internal Revenue Code. Our cost &ptbfit
sharing and pension plan was 15% of each emploges&red compensation in each of the fiscal ye@itd 22010
and 2009.
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We have an employee stock ownership plan (“ESO®8ging substantially all of our non-bargaining doyges,
excluding our executive officers. Contributions exade at our discretion subject to a maximum amalioived
under the Internal Revenue Code. Our cost for B@E was 5% of each employee’s covered compensateach
of the fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009.

We have an employee stock purchase plan (‘ESPR®riow substantially all of our employees, exclydin
officers. We match 75% of each employee’s contitytup to a maximum of $375 per month, on a moniialsis.
This plan was discontinued as of the beginningsafaf 2012 and replaced with an ESPP that allowd@yees to
purchase newly-issued shares of the Company’s canstock at a discount from market, with no employee
contribution match from the Company.

We participate in a union sponsored, collectivaygained pension plan (“Union Plan”). Contributi@re
determined in accordance with the provisions ofotiated labor contracts and generally are baseétdenumber of
hours worked. Several factors could result in piakfunding deficiencies which could cause us tkm
significantly higher future contributions to thgdans, including unfavorable investment performabanges in
demographics, and increased benefits to participadtthis time, we are unable to determine the arhof
additional contributions, if any.

The following represents the contribution expemsetie profit sharing, ESOP, ESPP and pension plans

Benefit Plan 2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)
Profit sharinc $2,675 $2,84¢  $2,66¢
ESOP 81t 89¢ 85t
ESPP 64¢ 65C 63¢
Union pensior 383 371 35C
Total contribution expens $4,521 $4,76¢  $4,517

We do not currently offer any other significant poetirement or post-employment benefits.

Note 9—Commitments and Contingencies

Leases —We have various operating leases for trucks andl #aual buildings on which some of our operations
are located. Future minimum lease payments duerwpdzating leases with an initial term of one ysamore at
April 3, 2011 are as follows:

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 _ Thereafter
(In thousands)

Minimum lease paymel $66S $66E $68z $67C $62z  $3,73¢

Total rental expense for the fiscal years 20110284d 2009 were as follows:

2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)

Minimum rentals $552 $577 $53¢
Contingent rental 114 10z 10€
Total rental expens $66€ $67C $644

Litigation — We are a party from time to time in litigation ang in the ordinary course of our business. To
date, none of the litigation has had a materiaatfbn us.
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On November 3, 2009, ICL Performance Products,“LE®L(), a chemical supplier to us, filed a lawsuitthe
United States District Court for the Eastern Dedtaf Missouri, asserting breach of a contractlfier sale of
phosphoric acid in 2009 (the “2009 Contract”). I€teks to recover $7.3 million in damages and pigment
interest, and additionally seeks to recover itdxand attorneys’ fees. ICL also claimed that weabhed a contract
for the sale of phosphoric acid in 2008 (the “2@htract”). ICL has since dropped its claim fordure of the 2008
Contract. We have counterclaimed against ICL afigghat ICL falsely claimed to have a shortageasf materials
that prevented it from supplying us with the coatea quantity of phosphoric acid for 2008. We cldirat ICL usec
this alleged shortage and the threat of discontiraipments of phosphoric acid to force us to paygased prices
for the remainder of 2008, and to sign the 2009taoh Based on this alleged conduct, we have trofogir
alternate causes of action including: (1) breactooftract, (2) breach of the implied covenant addjéaith and fair
dealing, (3) negligent misrepresentation, andrffntional misrepresentation. We seek to recoves gilllion in
damages, and additionally seek to recover punitareages, pre- and post-judgment interest, andasis and
attorneys’ fees. The discovery phase in this adsa@omplete and this action is scheduled for jugf in late
October 2011. We are not able to predict the uligneaitcome of this litigation, but it may be cosdlyd disruptive.
Lawsuits such as this can result in substantiakcasd divert our management’s attention and ressyukvhich may
have a material adverse effect on our businessemudts of operations, including cash flows.

Asset Retirement Obligations -We have three leases of land (two relate to Hawdmtsone relates to Verte
and at the end of the lease term (currently 2014hi® Vertex lease and 2018 for the Hawkins leddbe leases are
not renewed), we have a specified amount of tintetmove the property and buildings. At the enchefgpecified
amount of time, anything that remains on the lagcbimes the property of the lessor, and the lessothe option to
either maintain the property or remove the propattyur expense. We have not been able to reasoestihate thi
fair value of the asset retirement obligationsmariily due to the combination of the following faxd: The leases ¢
not expire in the near future; we have a historgxdénding the leases with the lessors and cuyrantind to do so
at expiration of the lease periods; the lessomatdave a history of terminating leases withétsants; and because
it is more likely than not that the buildings wilave value at the end of the lease life and thezefoay not be
removed by either the lessee or the lessor. Therefoaccordance with ASC 410-20, “Asset Retiretaem
Environmental Obligations,” we have not recordedaset retirement obligation as of April 3, 2011 Wl
continue to monitor the factors surrounding theunegment to record an asset retirement obligatichaill
recognize the fair value of a liability in the pmtiin which it is incurred and a reasonable estncan be made.

Note 10—Income Taxes

The provisions for income taxes for fiscal 20111@@&nd 2009 are as follows:

2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)

Federa— current $9,81¢ $ 6,601 $ 8,87«
State— current 2,531 1,634 2,331
Total current 12,34¢ 8,23¢ 11,20¢
Federa— deferrec (69) 5,73¢ 2,42(
State— deferred (299) 1,41: 62€
Total deferrec (36§ 7,152 3,04¢
Total provision $11,98. $15,387 $14,25!
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Reconciliations of the provisions for income taxessed on income from continuing operations, to the
applicable federal statutory income tax rate of g®listed below.

2011 2010 2009

Statutory federal income te 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
State income taxes, net of federal deduc 4.7 5.C 5.1
ESOP dividend deduction on allocated shi 1.2 (2.0 (0.8
Domestic production deductic 1.3y (0.6 (1.0
Other— net (0.0) 0. (0.5
Total 37.1% 39.2% 37.&%

The tax effects of items comprising our net deféteex asset (liability) as of April 3, 2011 and Mar28, 2010
are as follows:

2011 2010
(In thousands)

Deferred tax asset

Trade receivable $ 16z $ 12C
Amortization of intangible: 73 —
Accruals 91¢ 72C
Other 58€ 172
Total deferred tax asse $ 1,74C $ 1,012
Deferred tax liabilities
Inventories $ (3,190 $ (3,69¢)
Prepaid (283) (355
Excess of tax over book depreciat (8,762) (7,749
Amortization of intangible: — (13€)
Total deferred tax liabilitie $(12,23%)  $(11,930)
Net deferred tax liabilitie $(10,49%)  $(10,919

As of April 3, 2011, the Company has determined tthia more likely than not that the deferred &ssets at
April 3, 2011 will be realized either through futuiaxable income or reversals of taxable tempatifgrences. As
of April 3, 2011 and March 28, 2010, there werauncecognized tax benefits. Accordingly, a tabuésnonciliation
from beginning to ending periods is not provided.

We are subject to U.S. federal income tax as veeitheome tax of multiple state jurisdictions. Th& years
beginning with 2007 remain open to examinationt®y Ihternal Revenue Service, and with few exceptistate ar
local income tax jurisdictions.

Note 11—Discontinued Operations

In February 2009, we agreed to sell our inventoy entered into a marketing agreement regardinikaes
of our Pharmaceutical segment, which provided phasuatical chemicals to retail pharmacies and satalle
pharmaceutical manufacturers. On May 22, 2009 tajrity of the inventory was sold for cash of appnoately
$1.6 million which approximated its carrying valdée remaining inventory, with a carrying valueapproximatel
$0.1 million, was sold during fiscal 2010. The agrent provides for annual payments based on amgagee of
gross profit on future sales up to a maximum ofrapimately $3.7 million. We have no significant raiming
obligations to fulfill under the agreement. Weialiy recorded a receivable of approximately $1iliom, equal to
the carrying value of the assets that were relatdhis business. The first year payment undeatreement of
approximately $0.8 million was received in the setquarter of fiscal 2011, leaving a $0.9 milli@ceivable
remaining as of the end of fiscal 2011, which ipepted to be collected in the second quarter chffig012.
Amounts received in excess of the remaining retdéyaluring fiscal 2012 and subsequent years,heilfecorded ¢
a gain on sale of discontinued operations in tip@s@ds. The results of the Pharmaceutical segimerg been
reported as discontinued operations for all perfrésented.
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HAWKINS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Note 12—Segment Information

We have two reportable segments: Industrial anceWeteatment. The accounting policies of the segsare
the same as those described in the summary ofisegmi accounting policies. Product costs and egpsifor each
segment are based on actual costs incurred aladhgeest allocation of shared and centralized fumsti We
evaluate performance based on profit or loss frperations before income taxes not including nonmréay gains
and losses. Reportable segments are defined bygtradd type of customer. Segments are resporfsibibe sales
marketing and development of their products andises. The segments do not have separate accounting
administration, customer service or purchasingtions. There are no intersegment sales and no tipgisEegments
have been aggregated. Given our nature, it is raatipal to disclose revenues from external custsrfeg each
product or each group of similar products. No singlstomes revenues amount to 10% or more of our revenu
single customer represents 10% or more of eitheuosegments’ sales. Sales are primarily withenlnited States
and all assets are located within the United States

Water
Reportable Segment Industrial Treatment Total
(In thousands)

Fiscal Year Ended April 3, 201

Sales $208,72: $88,917 $297,64:
Gross profi 36,93¢ 24,96« 61,90:
Operating incom: 17,11( 14,85: 31,96
Identifiable assets $121,25( $21,13¢ $142,38¢
Fiscal Year Ended March 28, 20:
Sales $174,90. $82,19¢ $257,09¢
Gross profit 37,28¢ 27,157 64,44:
Operating incom: 20,937 17,90: 38,84(
Identifiable assets $ 79,60: $19,15: $ 98,75«
Fiscal Year Ended March 29, 20(
Sales $201,59¢ $ 82,76( $284,35¢
Gross profi 41,46¢ 20,95« 62,42(
Operating incom: 25,52( 11,817 37,33’
Identifiable assets $ 78,08: $20,89¢ $ 98,97¢

* Unallocated assets consisting primarily of cash@wh equivalents, investments and prepaid expeveses
$41.7 million at April 3, 2011, $60.5 million at Ivtzh 28, 2010 and $33.4 million at March 29, 2009.
Additionally, assets associated with the discorthaperations of the Pharmaceutical segment wegerfillion
at April 3, 2011, $1.0 million at March 28, 2010d$3.9 million at March 29, 200
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HAWKINS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Note 13—Selected Quarterly Financial Data(Unaudited)

Fiscal 2011
First Second Third Fourth
(In thousands, except per share data)
Sales $74,665 $70,39¢ $70,62( $81,957
Gross profit 18,441 17,74: 13,72¢ 11,98¢
Operating incom: 11,78¢ 10,92¢ 6,83: 2,41¢
Income from continuing operatiol 7,331 6,832 4,25¢ 1,891
Net income $ 733 $683 $425¢ $ 1,891
Basic net income per she $ 07z $ 067 $ 041 $ 0.1¢
Diluted net income per sha $ 071 $ 066 $ 041 $ O0.1¢
Fiscal 2010
First Second Third Fourth
Sales $73,58¢ $64,97¢ $60,627 $57,91(
Gross profit 15,85¢ 17,41¢ 15,85t 15,31¢
Operating incom: 9,501 10,84¢ 9,40¢ 9,08:
Income from continuing operatiol 5,94¢ 6,66¢ 5,59t 5,53¢
Income from discontinued operations, net of 10¢ — — —
Net income $ 6,06 $ 6665 $559 $ 553
Basic net income per she $ 05¢ $ 065 $ 05t $ 0.54
Diluted net income per sha $ 05¢ $ 06t $ 054 $ 054
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Not applicable.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURE!
Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this AnriR@port on Form 10-K, we conducted an evaluatiodgun
supervision and with the participation of managetmiecluding the chief executive officer and cHiefancial
officer, of the effectiveness of the design andraflen of our disclosure controls and proceduresymant to
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15@f the Exchange Act. Based upon that evaluationchief executive officer and chi
financial officer concluded that our disclosure trols and procedures are effective. Disclosurerotsiand
procedures are defined by Rules 13a-15(e) and &&&)-df the Exchange Act as controls and otherguores that
are designed to ensure that information requirdzktdisclosed by us in reports filed with the SE@ar the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarizedegnoated within the time periods specified in 8tC's rules
and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures delwithout limitation, controls and proceduresigiesd to
ensure that information required to be disclosedsin reports filed under the Exchange Act is anglated and
communicated to our management, including our praiexecutive and principal financial officers,marson
performing similar functions, as appropriate t@wailtimely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finahcia
reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d)1df(the Securities Exchange Act. Our internaltcolnover
financial reporting is designed to provide reastémalssurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappsges in accordance with generally accepted atiogun
principles. Our internal control over financial cefing includes those policies and procedures(thgpertain to
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detlrately and fairly reflect the transactions disgpositions of our
assets; (2) provide reasonable assurance thahttzorss are recorded as necessary to permit ptepacd the
financial statements in accordance with generalbepted accounting principles, and that our reseipt
expenditures are being made only in accordanceamthorizations of our management and directors; an
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding pre@reatitimely detection of unauthorized acquisitiose or
disposition of our assets that could have a mateffieact on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or déte
misstatements. Projections of any evaluation okffectiveness of internal control over financiaporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the contraly imecome inadequate because of changes in corglitiothat the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedunay deteriorate.

Our management assessed the effectiveness oftetmahcontrol over financial reporting as of Af8jl2011,
based on the criteria describednternal Control — Integrated Frameworésued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations (“COSO") of the Treadway CommissiBased on this assessment, management believemithat
internal control over financial reporting was effee as of April 3, 2011.

Our independent registered public accounting fiem issued an attestation report on our internatrabover
financial reporting for April 3, 2011. That attetsta report is set forth immediately following thisanagement

report.

/sl Patrick H. Hawkins /sl Kathleen P. Pepski

Patrick H. Hawkins Kathleen P. Pepski

Chief Executive Officer and President Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Traasu
June 9, 201: June 9, 201:
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Attestation Report of Registered Public Accounting=irm

The attestation report required under this Item®éontained in Item 8 of this Annual Report onKLOmder
the caption “Report of Independent Registered Bukdicounting Firm.”
Changes in Internal Control Procedures

Except as set forth below, there was no changeriimnternal control over financial reporting duritige fourth
quarter of fiscal 2011 that has materially affectads reasonably likely to materially affect, anternal control
over financial reporting.

In connection with the Vertex acquisition managentes elected to exclude Vertex from management'’s
assessment of the effectiveness of our internataloover financial reporting for the year endedrig, 2011 as
permitted by the Securities and Exchange Commisgisrof April 3, 2011, total net tangible assetsilatitable to
Vertex represented approximately $20 million or 1@P6ur total assets. Total revenue attributableeaex
represented approximately $9 million of net reverre8% of net revenue for the fiscal year ended|/8p 2011.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Not Applicable

PART IlI

Certain information required by Part Il is incorpted by reference from Hawkins’ definitive Prox@at@ment
for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be helddagust 2, 2011 (the “2011 Proxy StatemerEjcept for thos
portions specifically incorporated in this Form Ky reference to Hawkins’ Proxy Statement, no ogfations of
the 2011 Proxy Statement are deemed to be filgaduaf this Form 10-K.

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, AND CORPORATE GOVERANCE

Our executive officers, their ages and offices hatdof May 31, 2011 are set forth below:

Name Age Office

Patrick H. Hawkins 40 Chief Executive Officer and Preside

Kathleen P. Peps! 56 Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Traas
Mark A. Beyer 49 Vice Presiden— Operations

Richard G. Ersta 47 Vice President, General Counsel and Secre
Theresa R. Mora 48 Vice Presiden— Quality and Suppo!

Keenan A. Paulso 61 Vice Presiden— Water Treatment Grou

John R. Sevenic 53 Vice Presiden— Industrial Groug

Patrick H. Hawkinsvas appointed to serve as our Chief Executive &ffemd President in March 2011. He |
previously been promoted to the position of Presidie March 2010 as part of the Board’s succesplanning
efforts. He joined the Company in 1992 and serwetha Business Director +o0o0d and Pharmaceuticals, a posi
he held from 2009 to 2010. Previously he serveBusiness Manager — Food and Co-Extrusion Produats f
2007 to 2009 and Sales Representative — Food liggrsdrom 2002 to 2007. He previously served tbenany
in various other capacities, including Plant Marra@aiality Director and Technical Director.

Kathleen P. Pepskias been the Company’s Vice President, Chief Finh@ficer and Treasurer since
February 2008 and was Secretary from February B0Bvember 2008. She was the Executive Vice Peesidnd
Chief Financial Officer of PNA Holdings, LLC and e Corporation, a supplier of business equipmantspfrom
2003 to 2007, the Vice President of Finance of hlaffif Enclosures, a manufacturer of systems enclosunc a
subsidiary of Pentair, Inc., from 2002 to 2003,i8eNice President and Chief Financial Officer d¥iB Industries,
Inc., a manufacturer of lenses and aperture méshs,2000 to 2001, and Vice President and Contralfé/alspar
Corporation, a paint and coatings manufacturemft®94 to 2000.
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Mark A. Beyeihas been the Company’s Vice President of Operatimte September 2009. Mr. Beyer
previously held operations leadership positiong\Bibston Scientific Corporation, a medical devicanurfacturer,
and General Mills, Inc., a diversified food compaHg was self-employed as a consultant from Jan2@d$ to
September 2009.

Richard G. Erstadhas been the Company’s Vice President, General $&bamd Secretary since November
2008. He was General Counsel and Secretary of BU@A, a restaurant company, from 2005 to 2008.Histad
had previously been an attorney with the corpogabeip of Faegre & Benson LLP, a law firm, from 196&005,
where his practice focused on securities law andjere and acquisitions. He is a member of the MinteeBar.

Theresa R. Morahas been the Company'’s Vice President — QualitySuqgport since February 2010. Since
joining the Company in 1981, Ms. Moran has seryed@ompany in a variety of positions, including Adistration
Operations Manager from 1999 to 2007 and most tBcas Director — Process Improvement, a positios Iseld
from 2007 until the time of her promotion.

Keenan A. Paulsohas been the Company’s Vice Presidentater Treatment Group since May 2000. Pric
attaining this position, Ms. Paulson held varioosipions during her 37-yeaareer with the Company, most rece
as its Water Treatment General Manager.

John R. Sevenidias been the Company’s Vice President — Indusiiialip since May 2000. He was the
Business Unit Manager of Manufacturing from 1992®00 and was a Sales Representative with the Qoyrfpam
1989 to 1998.

“Election of Directors,” “Corporate Governance,"daftection 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting
Compliance” of the 2010 Proxy Statement are incaigal herein by reference.

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct andsitiat applies to all of our directors and empésye
including our principal executive officer, princidaancial officer, controller and other persoresforming similar
functions. We have posted the Code of Business @arahd Ethics on our website located at
http://www.hawkinsinc.com. Hawkins’ Code of BusiagSonduct and Ethics is also available in prirang
shareholder who requests it in writing from our @ate Secretary. We intend to post on our websije
amendment to, or waiver from, a provision of oud€of Business Conduct and Ethics that appliesitgoncipal
executive officer, principal financial officer, coaoller and other persons performing similar fuons within four
business days following the date of such amendwrantiver. We are not including the information taned on
our website as part of, or incorporating it by refece into, this report.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

“Compensation of Executive Officers and Directap§'the 2011 Proxy Statement is incorporated hdvgithis
reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS ANDMANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

“Security Ownership of Management and Beneficialm@vship” and “Equity Compensation Plan Information”
of the 2011 Proxy Statement are incorporated hdxeithis reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, ANEDIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

“Election of Directors” and “Related Party Transans” of the 2011 Proxy Statement are incorporaiein
by this reference.
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ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

“Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm’'e§ef the 2011 Proxy Statement is incorporated hdvgi
this reference.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

@(1)

@)

@)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY

The following financial statements of Hawkins, lace filed as part of this Annual ReportForm 1(-K:
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfings.

Consolidated Balance Sheets at April 3, 2011 anctiMa8, 2010

Consolidated Statements of Income for the fiscatyended April 3, 2011, March 28, 2010, and
March 29, 2009

Consolidated Statements of ShareholdErglity for the fiscal years ended April 3, 2011,rivta28, 201C
and March 29, 200¢

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for thelfigears ended April 3, 2011, March 28, 2010, and
March 29, 2009

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES OF THE COMPAN®

The additional financial data listed below is irdddl as a schedule to this Annual Report on

Form 10-K and should be read in conjunction with financial statements presented in Part Il, ltem 8
Schedules not included with this additional finahciata have been omitted because they are ndatedqu
or the required information is included in the fic@l statements or the not

The following financial statement schedule for fiseal years 2011, 2010 and 20!
Schedule |— Valuation and Qualifying Account
EXHIBITS

The exhibits of this Annual Report on Form 10-Klired herein are set forth on the attached
Exhibit Index.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Compas
duly caused this report to be signed on its behathe undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

HAWKINS, INC.

Date:June 9, 201 By /s/ Patrick H. Hawkins

Patrick H. Hawkins,
Chief Executive Officer and President

POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each of the undersigned directors of the Compaogs dhereby make, constitute and appoint Patrick H.
Hawkins and Kathleen P. Pepski, and either of thBmundersigned’s true and lawful attorney-in-faetl agent,
acting alone, with full power of substitution, filve undersigned and in the undersigned’s nameg plad stead, to
sign and affix the undersigned’s name as such tdired the Company, in any and all capacities,rtg and all
amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K arfide the same, with all exhibits thereto, andestdocuments
in connection wherewith, with the Securities ana@tiange Commission, granting unto said attorneaat;fand
either of them, full power and authority to do gedform each and every act necessary or incidemtake
performance and execution of the powers hereinessly granted.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has also been sigpedalv by
the following persons on behalf of the Company ianithe capacities indicated on the date set foegide their
signature.

/sl Patrick H. Hawkins Date:June 9, 201

Patrick H. Hawkins, Chief Executive Officer and
President (Principal Executive Officer) and Dirat

/sl Kathleen P. Pepski Date:June 9, 201

Kathleen P. Pepski, Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer, and Treasurer (Principal Financial Offieard
Principal Accounting Officer

/s/ John S. McKeon Date:June 9, 201
John S. McKeon, Director, Chairman of the Bo

/sl Duane M. Jergenson Date:June 9, 201
Duane M. Jergenson, Direcl

/sl Daryl I. Skaar Date:June 9, 201
Daryl I. Skaar, Directo

/sl James A. Faulconbridge Date:June 9, 201
James A. Faulconbridge, Direc!

/sl James T. Thompson Date:June 9, 201
James T. Thompson, Direct

/sl Jeffrey L. Wright Date:June 9, 201
Jeffrey L. Wright, Directo
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SCHEDULE Il

HAWKINS, INC.

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED APRIL 3, 2011, MARCH 28, 2010, AND MARCH 29, 2009

Description

Reserve deducted from asset to which it app
Year Ended April 3, 2011
Allowance for doubtful accoun
Year Ended March 28, 201
Allowance for doubtful accoun
Year Ended March 29, 200
Allowance for doubtful accoun

Additions

Balance at Chargedto Charged to

Beginning Costs and Other Deductions  Balance at
of Year Expenses Accounts  Write-Offs  End of Year

(In thousands)

$30C $12C $— $ 14 $40¢€
$35€ $(29 $— $ 21 $30C
$22E $23C $— $10¢ $35C
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Exhibit Index

Unless otherwise indicated, all documents incongarinto this Annual Report on Form 10-K by refaremo a
document filed with the SEC are located underrfilenber 0-7647.
Exhibit Description Method of Filing

2.1  Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of Januar1@, 2mong Vertex
Chemical Corporation, Novel Wash Co., Inc., R.HJ®rporation, Twin

Acquisition Corp. and Hawkins, Inc.( Incorporated by Referen
3.1 Amended and Second Restated Articles of Incorpmras amended
through February 27, 2001.( Incorporated by Referen
3.2 Amended and Restated -Laws.(3) Incorporated by Referen
10.1* Retention Bonus Agreement with John R. Hawl Incorporated by Referen
10.2*  Description of Consulting Arrangement with JohrivieKeon.(4) Incorporated by Referen
10.3* Hawkins, Inc. 2004 Omnibus Stock Plan. Incorporated by Referen
10.4* Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the Compg&2004 Omnibus
Stock Plan.(6 Incorporated by Referen
10.5* Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (Directors) urtle Company’s
2004 Omnibus Stock Plan.( Incorporated by Referen
10.6* Form of Non-Statutory Stock Option Agreement urttierCompany’s
2004 Omnibus Stock Plan.( Incorporated by Referen

10.7* Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit ivNotice and
Restricted Stock Agreement under the Company’s ZD@ibus Stock

Plan.(9) Incorporated by Referen
10.8* Hawkins, Inc. 2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan.( Incorporated by Referen
10.9* Form of Performance-Based Unit Award Notice andtfeed Stock

Agreement under the Compé's 2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan.(! Incorporated by Referen
10.10* Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the Coiyg&2010 Omnibus

Incentive Plan.(12 Incorporated by Referen
23.1  Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriinm. Filed Electronically
23.2  Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriinm. Filed Electronically
31.1 Certification by Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) of the

Exchange Act Filed Electronically
31.2 Certification by Chief Financial Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) of the

Exchange Act Filed Electronically
32.1  Section 1350 Certification by Chief Executive Og#iic Filed Electronically
32.2  Section 1350 Certification by Chief Financial Oéfic Filed Electronically

* Management contract or compensation plan or gearent required to be filed as an exhibit to thimdal
Report orForm 1(-K.

(1) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the @any’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated Januan20@;1
and filed January 11, 20:

(2) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the @any’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ehde
September 30, 200

(3) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the @any’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated October22®9
and filed November 3, 200

(4) Incorporated by reference to Iltem 1.01 of the CamgisaCurrent Report on Form 8-tfated August 5, 2009 a
filed August 11, 200¢

(5) Incorporated by reference to Appendix B to the Canyis Proxy Statement for the 2004 Annual Meetihg o
Shareholders filed July 23, 20(
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(6) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to thenpany’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the oerdyt
period ended September 30, 2004 and filed Nove®h2004.

(7) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the oerdyt
period ended September 30, 20

(8) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the gerdyt
period ended June 30, 20(

(9) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to thenpany’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the gerdyt
period ended June 30, 20(

(10) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 filatkJ,
2011 (fileno. 33:-174735).

(11) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the oerdyt
period ended June 30, 20:

(12) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to thenpany’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the cerdyt
period ended June 30, 20:
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EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors
Hawkins, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference irrdlggstration statements No. 333-87582 on For&r8lating to the Hawkins, Inc. Employ
Stock Purchase Plan, as Amended and Restated, N&72¥61 on Form S-8 relating to the Hawkins, Exmployee Stock Purchase Plan,
333-123080 on Form S-8 relating to the Hawkins, 8894 Omnibus Stock Plan, and 333-174735 on FeBwedating to the Hawkins, Inc.
2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan of our reports datese ) 2011, with respect to the balance sheetswdkiths, Inc. as of April 3, 2011 and
March 28, 2010, the related statements of incommereholders’ equity, and cash flows for each ofytsars in the two-year period ended
April 3, 2011, the related financial statement slthe, and the effectiveness of internal controlrdireancial reporting as of April 3, 2011,
which report appears in the April 3, 2011 annupbreon Form 10-K of Hawkins, Inc.

Our report dated June 9, 2011 on the effectiveoksgernal control over financial reporting asAgril 3, 2011, contains an explanatory
paragraph stating that the Company acquired Vé&temical Corporation (“Vertex”) during fiscal ye2011 and that management excluded
Vertex from its assessment of the effectivenegsh®fCompany’s internal control over financial rapay as of April 3, 2011. Our audit of
internal control over financial reporting for the@i@pany also excluded an evaluation of the intecoatrol over financial reporting of Vertex.

/sl KPMG LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota
June 9, 2011



EXHIBIT 23.2

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegjion Statements No. 333-87582, 333-123080;132%61 and 333-174735 on Form S-
8 of our reports dated June 5, 2009, relating edfitiancial statements and financial statementdidbeof Hawkins, Inc., appearing in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K of Hawkins, Inc. for tear ended April 3, 2011.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota
June 9, 2011



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Patrick H. Hawkins, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Hawkins, Inc.;

2.  Based on my knowledge, this report doescantain any untrue statement of a material factoit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this ref

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial stateésjend other financial information included ifstreport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presentet
this report;

4.  The registrang’other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and we ha

a) designed such disclosure controls and proesdor caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatmeg to the registrant, including its consolidhubsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattdy during the period in which this report isiige prepared

b) designed such internal control over finaha@orting, or caused such internal control owearicial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
the financial statements for external purposecaoalance with generally accepted accounting [piasi

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the regissalisclosure controls and procedures and predentthis report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contiots procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehlis report based on
such evaluation; ar

d) disclosed in this report any change in #ggstrant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrsts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyesftf, the registra’s internal control over financial reportir

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officerdahhave disclosed, based on our most recent eti@uaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitatc@mmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the
equivalent functions!

a) all significant deficiencies and materialakieesses in the design or operation of internairabaver financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectbgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; anc

b) any fraud, whether or not material, thabires management or other employees who have Hiségn role in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

Date: June 9, 2011

/s/ Patrick H. Hawkins

Patrick H. Hawkins
Chief Executive Officer and Preside




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Kathleen P. Pepski, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Hawkins, Inc.;

2.  Based on my knowledge, this report doescantain any untrue statement of a material factoit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this ref

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial stateésjend other financial information included ifstreport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presentet
this report;

4.  The registrang’other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and we ha

a) designed such disclosure controls and proesdor caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatmeg to the registrant, including its consolidhibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattdy during the period in which this report isiige prepared

b) designed such internal control over finaha@orting, or caused such internal control owearicial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
the financial statements for external purposecaoalance with generally accepted accounting [piasi

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the regissalisclosure controls and procedures and predentthis report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contiots procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehlis report based on
such evaluation; ar

d) disclosed in this report any change in #ggstrant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrsts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyesftf, the registra’s internal control over financial reportir

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officerdahhave disclosed, based on our most recent eti@uaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitatc@mmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the
equivalent functions!

a) all significant deficiencies and materialakieesses in the design or operation of internairabaver financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectbgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; anc

b) any fraud, whether or not material, thabires management or other employees who have Hiségn role in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

Date: June 9, 2011

/sl Kathleen P. Pepski

Kathleen P. Peps
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Traas!




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Hawkins;.lfthe Company) on Form 10-K for the period ended| 3, 2011, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the dateh@he Report), I, Patrick H. Hawkins, Chief Exéea Officer and President of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 135Gdspted pursuant to 8 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley®2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirents of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitirshange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Repoitlfgoresents, in all material respects, the finahcondition and results of operations of the
Company.

/s/ Patrick H. Hawkins

Patrick H. Hawkins

Chief Executive Officer and Preside
June 9, 201:




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Hawkins;.lfthe Company) on Form 10-K for the period ended| 3, 2011, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the dat@h@he Report), I, Kathleen P. Pepski, Chief FitciahOfficer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursad906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirents of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitirshange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Repoitlfgoresents, in all material respects, the finahcondition and results of operations of the
Company.

/sl Kathleen P. Pepski

Kathleen P. Peps!

Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Traas
June 9, 201:




